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JAMES COTTER, JR.

05/16/2016

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR., derivatively
on behalf of Reading International,
Inc.,

Plaintiff,

vS. Case No.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER, A-15-719860-B

GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS

McEACHERN, TIMOTHY STOREY,

WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY CODDING,

MICHAEL WROTNIAK, and DOES 1

through 100, inclusive,
Defendants.

and
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.,

a Nevada corporation,
Nominal Defendant.

(CAPTION CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE.)
VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF JAMES COTTER,
Los Angeles, California
Monday, May 16, 2016
Volume T

Reported by:

JANICE SCHUTZMAN, CSR No. 9509
Job No. 2312188

Pages 1 - 297

JR..

Page 1

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127
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JAMES COTTER, JR.

05/16/2016

T2 PARTNERS MANAGEMENT, LP, a
Delaware limited partnership,
doing business as KASE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT, et al.,

Plaintiffs,

vS.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER,
GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS
McEACHERN, WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY
CODDING, MICHAEL WROTNIAK, CRAIG
TOMPKINS, and DOES 1 through 100,
inclusive,

Defendants.
and
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC., a
Nevada corporation,

Nominal Defendant.

Videotaped Deposition of JAMES COTTER,

Volume I, taken at 865 South Figueroa Street,

10th Floor, Los Angeles, California, commencing

at 10:09 a.m. and ending at 5:40 p.m., Monday,

May 16, 2016, before Janice Schutzman, CSR No. 9509.

PAGES 1 - 297

JR .,

Page 2

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127
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JAMES COTTER, JR. 05/16/2016

1 Q. Is that fair to say?

2 MR. KRUM: Same objections.

3 Go ahead.

4 THE WITNESS: Yes.

5 BY MR. TAYBACK: 10:30:57
6 Q. Any other form of redress that you are

7 seeking related to your termination --

8 MR. KRUM: Same objections.

S BY MR. TAYBACK:

10 Q. -- through this lawsuit? 10:31:04
11 MR. KRUM: Sorry.

12 MR. TAYBACK: That's all right.

13 MR. KRUM: Same objections, same

14 admonition.

15 Go ahead. 10:31:09
16 THE WITNESS: At this point in time, I do

17 not recall any, no.

18 BY MR. TAYBACK:

19 Q. When you were CEO, it was pursuant to a
20 written contract? 10:31:20
21 A, No.
22 Q. So yvou had no written employment contract
23 with respect to your position as CEO?
24 A. That's a legal question, Mr. Tayback.

T T —
25 I had an employment agreement as president 10:31:35
Page 30
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JAMES COTTER, JR.

05/16/2016

that was signed on June -- in June of 2014. I was
promoted to president -- to CEO on August 7th, 2014.
And whether my position as CEO was subsumed in the
employment agreement, I can't tell you.

Q. What was your understanding -- when you

became CEO, what was your understanding of the terms

that governed your employment?

A. That governed my employment ag CEO?
Q. Yes.
A. Well, at a minimum, the terms of my

employment agreement would continue, and there was
an expectation that it might be -- the terms might
be amended to reflect the new gtatus as CEO. The

terms and compensation might be amended to reflect

the status of CEO as well. But that had never been
done.

Q. So that never did get done; correct?

A. That's right.

Q. So your compensation as CEO wags the same as
that which is laid out -- was laid out in the
written agreement with respect to you being
president; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And the other terms that are set forth in

that written agreement that governed your position

10:31:59

10:32:15

10:32:34

10:32:46

10:33:00

Page 31
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JAMES COTTER, JR.

05/16/2016

as president so, you believe, stayed in effect while

vou were CEO; correct?

MR. KRUM: Objection, calls for a legal
conclusion.

THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the
quesgstion.

BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. Sure.

The written agreement that you had as
president, you believe that that stayed in effect
while you were CEO?

MR. KRUM: Same objection.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. And you didn't have some separate written

agreement with respect to being CEO?

A, No, I did not.

Q. And your understanding is that as CEO, you

reported to the board; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And you had no written guarantee of a
specific minimum term for which you would be CEO;
that correct?

MR. KRUM: Same objection.

THE WITNESS: Well, the expectation that

is

I

10:33:11

10:33:16

10:33:22

10:33:33

10:33:51
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JAMES COTTER, JR. 05/16/2016

had was that the employment agreement would at least
provide me a certain term as CEO and president.
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. So you believed that the written agreement
did govern your term as CEO? 10:34:07
MR. KRUM: Same objection.
THE WITNESS: I don't know if I can say
that T specifically thought that at the time.
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. You know what an employment -- employment 10:34:20

at will ig?

A. I do.
Q. And what's your understanding of that?
A, A company can terminate an executive at any
point in time. 10:34:35
Q. Did you believe that you were an employee

at will as CEO?
MR. KRUM: Same objection.
THE WITNESS: Again, I thought that at
least my employment agreement as president would 10:34:47
cover -- would be gubsumed and would deal with my
new title as CEO at a minimum.
Now, when you discuss being an employee at
will, I never thought that the board -- I always

assumed that if I was going to be terminated, even 10:35:05

Page 33
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JAMES COTTER, JR.

05/16/2016

if T were an employee at will, that the board would
engage in some modicum of process before making a
decision to terminate the CEO of a company.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. Put aside the process --

A. Okavy.

Q. -- for a minute. I want to understand what
your basis is for whether you believed that you
could be terminated at will or whether you couldn't
be terminated at will.

Did you believe you could be?

A. I believed that, at a minimum, the company
would provide me notice, 12 months' notice under my
employment agreement, before terminating me as
president and CEO.

Q. So you believe the notice provision and the
12 months -- the 12-month notice provision --
withdraw that.

So you believe that certain aspects, at
least, of that written agreement also governed your
relationship with the company as CEOQO; is that
correct?

MR. KRUM: Objection, calls for a legal
conclusion, the document speaks for itself.

You can answer.

10:35:19

10:35:26

10:35:42

10:35:59

10:36:10
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JAMES COTTER, JR. 05/16/2016
THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the
question?
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. I'll just ask a different question.
Tt's your understanding that as CEO, if vyou 10:36:19
were terminated for any reason, that you would be
entitled to -- withdraw that.
Tt was your understanding as CEO that if
you were terminated without cause, that you would be
entitled to some compensation, 12 months? 10:36:34
MR. KRUM: Same objections.
THE WITNESS: With respect to my employment
agreement, I expected that, at a minimum, the
company would provide me 12 months' notice -- 1if
they wanted to end the relationship, that they would 10:36:55
give me 12 months and my status as president and CEO
would continue. But that's simply my understanding
under the employment agreement.
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. And you believe that that employment 10:37:08
agreement governed your tenure as CEO, that written
employment agreement?
MR. KRUM: Same objections.
THE WITNESS: Did I believe my employment
agreement governed my status as CEO? 10:37:24
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Q.

Q.

A.

Q.
A.

lawyer.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Yes.
MR. KRUM: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: At a minimum, I agree that if

I were terminated as president and as CEO, that I
would have relief under that employment agreement.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

And I guess you can't answer the question

yves or no as to whether or not you believe that the
employment agreement that you had as president

governed your relationship with the company as CEO?

You know --
MR . KRUM: Wait.
THE WITNESS: -- I'm --

MR. KRUM: Wait. Let me interpose my

objections.

Objection, wvague and ambiguous, calls for a

legal conclusion.

YOou can answer.

THE WITNESS: I'm not a lawyer. 1I'm not a

practicing lawyer.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

You are a lawyer; correct?
I am a lawyer. 1I'm not a practicing

I'm not qualified in California.

10:37:37

10:37:52

10:37:57

10:38:03

10:38:10
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I became CEO.

I had an employment agreement as president.

The employment agreement was not

amended to reflect my new status as pregident and

CEO.

my status as CEO?

So did the employment agreement govern now

I don't know. I mean

tell yvou that as a nonpracticing lawyer.

that's a legal conclusion.

R L R SRRy

Q.

, I can't

I mean,

So when you became CEO, your compensation

stayed the same as it was when you were president?

A,

Q.

your written employment agreement?

It did.

And did you do anything to seek to amend

anything to do that?

A.

2014,

At the time that I became CEO,

Did you do

in August of

there were a lot of more pressing matters

confronting the company and confronting myself with

my father's death that I was addressing and thought

that these items were more important.

And so in the fullness of time,

I'm sure

that would have been addressed, but it wasn't a

priority for me at that point in my life and with

the matters confronting the company.

Q.

A,

So the answer to my question is no?

Okavy.

10:38:24

10:38:43

10:38:57

10:39:20

10:39:34

Page 37

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_PAGE_0871



JAMES COTTER, JR. 05/16/2016

1 moved to California and started becoming involved in
2 attending certain meetings, and 2000 --
3 September 2007 when you became wvice chairman --
4 A, Right.
5 Q. -- between 2005 and 2007, did you actually 12:56:47
6 have a position with Reading?
7 A. No. No. Not to my knowledge.
8 Q. You would occasionally attend meetings on a
9 periodic basgis.
10 Were they always with your father? 12:56:57
11 A. I mean, it was a long time ago.
12 I can't say definitively. Probably.
%‘mmm
§ 13 Q. And did you have actual respongibilities at
3
}
§ 14 any of these meetings?
§
3
§ 15 A. From 2005 until I was appointed vice 12:57:10
§
3
§ 16 chairman in September of 2007, no, I don't believe I
\‘
\
Y 17 did.
w‘mﬂm‘m
Yy
§ 18 Q. So you weren't -- actually, you weren't on
N
'%.
§ 19 the board and you weren't on a particular executive
X
%
§ 20 committee? 12:57:24
3
3
§ 21 A. Oh, no, I was on the board. I was on the
3
y
§ 22 board of directors of Reading since March of 2002.
3
3
% 23 Q. Okay. So your first position at Reading
8
%
§ 24 wag being on the board?
%
Y
§ 25 A. Yes. 12:57:36
3
3
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JAMES COTTER, JR. 05/16/2016
Q. And back in 2002, you were living in
New York?
A. Yes.
Q. Did you attend meetings?
A. Of course. 12:57:41
Q. Had you ever been on the board of a public
company prior to being on the board at Reading?
A. No.
Q. Was -- in 2002, was Reading a public
company at that point in time? 12:58:01
A, Yes.
Q. And the board -- who else was on the board
in 2002 when you first joined?
A. My father, I believe Bill Gould, Ed Kane,
possibly Al Villasenor. Those are the only names 12:58:38
that T can recall.
Q. Do you recall how big the board was? That
is to say, do you recall whether there were more
people but you're not remembering their names or
whether that might have been all of them? 12:58:54
A. There were certainly more people.
Q. Did you attend the board meetings in
person?
A. Some of them.
Q. And did you attend some by telephone? 12:59:00
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A, Yes.
Q. Okay. And did you also miss some board
meetings in the early days of being on the board?
A, I don't recall why I would have migsed
meetings. 12:59:13
Q. And did you get materials in advance for
consideration?
A. Absolutely.
Q. When would you get them in New York?
A. In 20027 12:59:22
Q. Yeah.
A. That's a long time. I don't --
Q. You don't remember?
A, I don't remember.
Q. Okay. Did -- do you know -- do you have 12:59:28
a --
Do you remember having a routine where you
would get, in advance of a board meeting, an agenda
and what you'd have to understand you would be
voting on? 12:59:37
A. Again, it's been a long time. I would be
surprised if we didn't.
Q. Okay. This was your first time being on a
board of a public company; correct?
A. Yes. 12:59:47
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Q. And what did you do to understand what your
regsponsibilities were?

A. Well, I was also a corporate lawyer at the
time, so I had familiarity with the responsibilities
of directors of public companies.

Q. Okay. So you had kind of your own
understanding. You didn't need to do anything in
particular to learn what you should -- what vyour
obligations would be as a board member for Reading?

A. I mean, I would often, vyou know, read
articles and cases, and aside from that and learning
as a corporate lawyer, I don't recall.

Q. Do you believe you were qualified to be on

the board of Reading at the time you were appointed?

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. Why? What made you qualified?
A, Well, T had stock in the company, I

believe, at the time. And I had an interest as a
large or potentially a very large stockholder with
my dad's interest. So I thought that it was

appropriate that I be on the board.

Q. How much stock did you own at the time?

A. T might not have owned a lot at the time,
but I'm -- the expectation was that the stock that
my dad owned would ultimately, you know -- or some

12:59:59

01:00:16

01:00:35

01:01:07

01:01:24
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of the stock would be owned by his three children.
Q. And were your -- either of your sisters on
the board at the same time?
A, I don't believe my sisters were on the
board at that time. I think possibly Margaret might 01:01:37
have joined afterwards, and I don't think Ellen
joined until 2013.
Q. And do you agree that at the time they
joined, respectively, that they were both equally
qualified to be board members of Reading? 01:01:50
A, For the same reasons that I listed for
myself, as far as having an ownership interest or a

potential ownership interest in the company, that --

Q. At least for those reasons.
A. Yeah, at least for those reasons that it 01:02:04
would be appropriate that they be -- that they have

a seat on the board, ves.
Q. And did you have -- what was the
business --
How would you describe the business of 01:02:15

Reading in 2002 at the time you became on the board?

A. I mean, it's -- this goes back.
Q. Generally.
A. It owned real estate at the time. This was
before it had acquired an interest in U.S. cinemas, 01:02:48
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I believe. But again, this goes back 14 years, so I
can't tell vyou.
Q. Had you had any professional experience in
real estate acqguisition development prior to 20027
A. I certainly had done real estate and other 01:03:14
acguisitiong and financings as a corporate lawyer at
Whitman Breed prior to 2002.
Q. Other -- so asgs the corporate lawyer
documenting a real estate transaction --
A. Right. 01:03:40
Q. -- have you made any -- had you been
engaged in any business where the business decisions
were acquisitions, real estate development, things
like that?
A. Prior to 2002, no. 01:03:52
Q. Correct.
Did you feel that was an impediment to your
being an effective board member of Reading when you
first joined the board?
A. Well, it certainly wasn't preferred. But I 01:04:05
felt that while I didn't have the real estate
experience that would have been preferred for the
board and I didn't have the public company
experience that would have been preferred for the

board, that my interest as a possibly very large 01:04:19
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stockholder of Reading outweighed not having the

real estate experience and not having the public

company experience. So I thought on balance, it was
appropriate.
Q. So you would agree that in, at least in 01:04:37

that instance, the Reading board could properly
weigh certain factors against other factors and make
a business decision that would -- came -- that
concluded that you were guitable for the board even
if you didn't have all of the preferred 01:04:54
characteristics of a board member; correct?
MR. KRUM: Objection, wvague and ambiguous.
THE WITNESS: QOkay.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. Yes? 01:05:09
A, Yes.
Q. Once you came on the board, did you

participate in the meetings? That is to say, were

you an active participant in the meetings?

A. Early on? 01:05:20
Q. Yes.
A. Again, this takes me back many vears.

Initially, without having the experience, I might
not have been as active as I had come to be over the

yvears. 01:05:42
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Q. And did you feel like you learned on the

job as a board member of Reading?

A. As a director?

Q. As a director.

A. Of course. 01:05:53
Q. What's the first big decision that you can

remember participating in as a director?

A. T don't recall.

Q. As -- up to present, are there any other
publicly -- public company boards that you've served 01:06:33
on?

A. I served on Gish Biomedical at one point.

Q. Any otherg?

A, Not that I recall.

Q. How long -- what time period were you on 01:07:03

the board of Gish Biomedical?

A, I really can't pinpoint how long I served

on the board of Gish.

Q. Give me an estimate of what years, roughly,
it covered? 01:07:28
A. 2004/2005.
Q. So approximately a year or two?
A. Pogsibly.
Q. How did you come to be on the board of Gish
Biomedical? 01:07:47
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A. I think I was appointed by the Reading

board because Reading had an interest in that

entity.
Q. What was the business of Gish Biomedical?
A. Biomedical. 01:07:59
Q. Was there some specific field, some

specific subspecialty or device that it was involwved

in?
A. I can't recall. I mean, it's been many
years. But it was in medical products. 01:08:12
Q. And did you attend board meetings for Gigsh
Biomedical?
A. I did.
Q. Can you remember any of the other board
members? 01:08:22
A, I can't.
Q. And did you attend those meetings in
person?
A, Some of them.
Q. And some by telephone? 01:08:29
A. Perhaps, vyes.
Q. Did you miss any?
A. T don't recall. I don't see why I would
have.
Q. Can you describe for me any major decigsions 01:08:37
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that were made while you were on the board of Gish
Biomedical?

MR. KRUM: Objection, wvague.

THE WITNESS: Again, it was sO many years
ago, I can't recall.
BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. Did you have any experience in the
biomedical industry at the time that you served on
the Gish Biomedical board?

A, No.

Q. What were you -- what were your
qualifications for serving on that board?

A, I guess my sole qualification was that the
board of Reading appointed me, if I remember
correctly.

Q. Did you believe that that was an adequate
basis for you to undertake your fiduciary duties as
a board member of Gish Biomedical?

MR. KRUM: Objection insofar as it calls
for a legal conclusion.
THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the
question?
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. sure.

Did you feel at the time that you were

01:08:56

01:09:04

01:09:18

01:09:30

01:09:36
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appointed to that board that you were qualified to
discharge your fiduciary duties as a board member of
Gish Biomedical?
MR. KRUM: Same objection.
THE WITNESS: It's been so many years. I 01:09:47
can't recall whether I thought that at the time.
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. Well, as you git here now, do you remember
thinking, wow, I'm on a board and I can't do my
fiduciary -- I can't live up to my fiduciary duties? 01:09:58
You probably would remember that, I think?
A. I mean, look- --
MR. KRUM: Same objection.
THE WITNESS: Looking back on it, I might
not have been the best candidate. 01:10:09

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. And did you say anything to anybody about
that?
A, Not that I recall, no.
Q. But that's a view that you look -- that you 01:10:16

have now, looking back on it.

You can't recall that you actually had that
view at the time?

MR. KRUM: Asked and answered.

THE WITNESS: I can't recall the wview that 01:10:24
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I had at that time.

MR. KRUM: Chris, i1t's 1:10, so whenever
it's convenient, why don't we break for lunch.

MR. TAYBACK: Now's good.

MR. KRUM: Now's good?

MR. TAYBACK: That's fine, yeah.

MR. KRUM: Okay.

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This marks the end of
media No. 2. Going off the record at 1:10 p.m.

(The luncheon recess was taken

at 1:10 p.m.)
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A. In 2007, the position really was to support

my father as chairman. And in 2007, I commenced
holding executive management meetings with the
executives in Australia and New Zealand, both for
the property and cinema operations there, and also
executive management meetings at -- with the U.S.
cinema team.

Met with them twice a week, put together

agendas for both meetings. Spoke with executives to

figure out what should be put on the agenda in order

to move the company forward under the direction of

the chairman and CEO of the company.

R R R AR AR AR AR AR AR e

Q. And had you had any experience at all in
the cinema or theater business of any sort?

A. Well, I had been a director of Reading
since 2002.

Q. Other than your tenure as a director of

Reading, had you had any experience with the --

A No.
Q. -- businesgs?

Is that also true with respect to your

experience at that point in time in -- with respect

to real estate, your time as a lawyer and then also

your time on the board of Reading? Is that vyour

only experience in the real estate business?
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"
N
% 1 A. Well, I had worked on a number of real
§
§
X
§ 2 estate transactions as a corporate lawyer, and I
8
§
X : : . :
§ 3 also worked on cinema transaction with Reading as a
%
X : :
§ 4 lawyer. But outside of that, that was predominantly
N
3
§ 5 the extent of my experience. 02:13:06
3
3 . . .
I 6 Q. How about your experience internationally,
y
3
3
§ 7 that is to say, international business? You were
3
3 .
¥ 8 working -- I think you said New Zealand?
5 g Y
§
% 9 A N
O.
% .
3
3 :
§1O Q. I'm sorry. Where did you say that your -- 02:13:17
%
3 A . . .
Y11 SO your regponsibilities in 2007 as vice chairman
N
R
8
%12 involved some international work; correct?
Y
X
\ : :
§13 A, Well, starting in 2007, I started
3
§
Y14 conducting weekly meetings with the management team
%
§
3
Y15 in Australia -- 02:13:31
3
X
%16 Q. Australia.
%
‘%
%17 A, -- and New Zealand.
§
8
3 . .
%18 Q. And had you had any experience with
3
8
%19 business in Australia or New Zealand?
§
§20 A. Outside of my experience as a director, 02:13:41
§
%
%21 since 2002, no.
8
E\;‘m&mﬂm\m
22 Q. As vice chairman, were you separately
23 compensated? In other words, were you compensated
24 in addition to the amounts that you were paid for
25 being a board member? 02:13:58
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1 my activity at those entities because of my
2 appointment as president of RDI.
3 And so while -- and so at the point of
4 becoming president, my father and I had an agreement
5 that I would transition my role as president whereas 02:25:48
6 CEO of Cecelia and the agricultural entities into
7 one as a director, and my activity would be
8 curtailed to reflect the role as a director.
9 Q. And in fact, is that what happened?
10 A. Yes. 02:26:15
11 Q. So when you took on the title of president
12 of Reading, what were the additional
13 responsibilities, job responsibilities as president
14 that you accepted?
15 A. Well, all of the responsibilities that a 02:26:25
16 president would normally accept, and spending, you
17 know, all of -- almost all of my time focused on
18 Reading, beginning, you know, in June of 2013.
W*mm‘m‘mm
N
§19 Q. OCkay. But if you could just elaborate for
3
3
%20 me, what were the -- what were those 02:26:54
3
3
%21 respongsibilitiegs, those typical responsibilities of
X
§
§22 a president?
§
X
§23 A. To -- I was reporting to the CEO, so I was
N
N
§24 helping the CEO implement his short-term and
3
3
%25 long-term vision. But I was also the primary 02:27:07
X
§
% Page 163
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executive respongsible for all of the day-to-day
decisions. The executives reported to the
president, and I ultimately reported to the CEO.
So it was more of an executive role with
executive regponsgibilities because at that time, our 02:27:34
chief operating officer had resigned, and I had
really stepped into an operating role to £ill the

void that he left with his resignation.

Q. Who was that COO?

A, John Hunter. 02:27:53
Q. And was he replaced?

A. He was not replaced. But I became

president either at the same time, shortly after, or
before his resignation as chief operating officer.
Q. Was there a president before you took the 02:28:07
position?
A, No.
Q. So the position was -- the title, at least,
wags created for you. That was, you were the first
president, there was no prior president? 02:28:17
A. I don't know if that's the case. There may
have been.
Q. But you didn't -- you didn't succeed
anybody in that position?

A. There wasn't a president at the company at 02:28:29
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the time I became president.

UL oo

Q. Who were the executives that reported to
you when you initially became president of Reading?

A. CFO. I don't know if there was a general
counsel, but the principal senior executives would
have reported to me.

Q. But I'm -- guess that's what I'm asking.

Who were the principal senior executives?
You mentioned the CFO. I'm wondering who
else it was.

A. Yeah, I mean, technically, all of the
principal -- Wayne Smith, Matthew Bourke, Bob
Smerling. I mean, I think that's 1it.

Q. What were their job titles?

A. Wayne Smith was the managing director of
our Australia and New Zealand operation. Andrze]
Matyczynski was our chief financial officer. I
mean, Craig Tompkins was an outside legal
consultant. Bob Smerling was the president of the
U.S. cinemas division. And my sister Margaret,
technically, who was a consultant in charge of the
live theater operation.

Q. So and when you say the major company
executivegs reported to you, you're including among

those people people who weren't, strictly speaking,

02:28:52

02:29:04

02:29:23

02:29:53

02:30:15
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1 significant experience gserving as a CFO of a large
2 public REIT.
3 At the time my father wanted to hire a new
4 general counsel, so I hired Bill Ellis, who's a real
5 estate partner at a large law firm here in 03:11:06
6 Los Angeles with a lot of real estate experience.
7 I was in the process of hiring a director
8 of real estate and on the verge of bringing on board
9 an executive who had 25 to 30 years of real egtate
10 development experience to preside over our domestic 03:11:28
11 real estate.
12 I -- whether it was as president or as CEO,
13 I was instrumental in the company selling off some
14 of our nonincome-producing propertiegs in Australia
15 and New Zealand. And at that time, I was putting 03:11:59
16 together a business plan for the company and getting
17 management reports from all of the heads of the
18 seven divisions of Reading.
Pe———
% 19 Putting to- -- I was on the verge of
% 20 putting together budgets for the whole company with 03:12:34
R
§ 21 stretch goals.
22 I had hired a director of real estate --
23 this might have been as president -- a director of
24 real estate for our Australia and New Zealand real
25 estate, who's been very successful in moving all of 03:12:49
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1 what the capital needs and what the business plans
2 that each of the divisions had and that that would
3 roll up into a plan for the entire company.
4 Q. So -- and you were -- did you have those
5 bottom-up business plans or not yet by the time you 03:22:15
6 were terminated?
7 A. I don't know exactly when. At some point,
8 maybe it was February, maybe it was March, we
9 completed the business plan for the U.S. cinemas,
10 which was a significant division of the entire 03:22:28
11 company. My sister Margaret was continuing to work
12 on a business plan for the live theaters.
13 But we were almost there in terms of now
14 having each of the divisions preparing business
15 plans and rolling them up into one unified plan for 03:22:44
16 the entire company as well as a unified budget,
17 which Dev had really been tasked with moving forward
18 as well.
W‘m‘m‘m
§ 19 Q. And did you have a -- I guess my qguestion
\
%
§ 20 is, at the time you were terminated, did you have a 03:23:01
E.
N
§ 21 draft --
8
3
Lo22 A. No.
%
}
§ 23 Q. -- you had started?
g
§
§
§ 24 A. I did not have a draft.
3
3 . .
§ 25 Q. So 1in terms of putting pen to paper or 03:23:07
R
o
% Page 205
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§
% 1 typewriter keys to the electronic page, you hadn't
§
% 2 started writing what would be the business plan that
§
% 3 you were contemplating?
§
§ 4 A. As I said, I was waiting for the completion
X
% 5 of all the business plans from the seven divisions 03:23:21
3
% 6 of the company.
T
7 Now, there was some delay in getting those,
8 and I was putting, you know, thought to the overall
9 business plan. But it had not been finalized in a
10 form to be presented to the board. 03:23:36
11 Q. And I understand it hadn't been finalized.
12 My question's a little different. I just want to
13 make sure that I -- that there's not a document out
14 there that I don't recognize, that this is no --
15 A. No. 03:23:45
16 Q. -- draft?
17 A, No, no. No.
18 Q. Okay. In terms of the budget for the -- by
19 the way, was there a date -- had you set an internal
20 deadline for creation of the business plan for the 03:24:00
21 company?
22 A. Did I set a date?
23 Q. Yeah, an internal date.
24 A, No.
25 Q. No? 03:24:10
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1 goals as a CEO?
2 A, T do.
3 Q. When you say "Update board to focus on
4 strategy, " what did you mean?
5 A. I meant that the board should get involved 04:23:30
6 with creating a strategy and be involwved in the
7 process and that the company should operate
8 according to a business plan and that the board
9 should be involved in that process.
10 Q. And was that something that yvou -- in fact, 04:23:46
11 did you present to the board in a time while you
12 were CEO a business plan with strategy,
13 understanding that you earlier gaid you didn't write
14 the business plan?
15 A. Right. That was -- I never presented -- 04:24:01
16 MR. KRUM: Object to the characterization
17 of the testimony.
s LR
§ 18 THE WITNESS: I never presented a plan to
3
% 19 the board prior to being terminated, but that was
N
% 20 one of the action items that I thought was important 04:24:10
% 21 for the company.
22 BY MR. TAYBACK:
23 Q. One of the -- the second one there says,
24 "develop better lines of communication with
25 shareholders. " 04:24:20
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES COTTER, JR., derivatively
on behalf of Reading International,
Inc.,

Plaintiff,

vS. Case NoO

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER, A-15-719860-B

Guy Adams, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS

McEACHERN, TIMOTHY STOREY,

WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY CODDING,

MICHAEL WROTNIAK, and DOES 1

through 100, inclusive,
Defendants.

and
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.,

a Nevada corporation,
Nominal Defendant.
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T2 PARTNERS MANAGEMENT, LP, a
Delaware limited partnership,
doing business as KASE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT, et al.,

Plaintiffs,

vS.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER,
Guy Adams, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS
McEACHERN, WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY
CODDING, MICHAEL WROTNIAK, CRAIG
TOMPKINS, and DOES 1 through 100,
inclusive,

Defendants.
and
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC., a
Nevada corporation,

Nominal Defendant.

Videotaped Deposition of JAMES COTTER, JR.,
Volume II, taken at 865 South Figueroa Street,
10th Floor, Los Angeles, California, commencing
at 9:38 a.m. and ending at 4:37 p.m., Tuesday,
May 17, 2016, before Janice Schutzman, CSR No. 9509.
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Q. Approximately when did you last -- was the
last discussion forum meeting that you recall? 09:44AM
A. There could have been one in December.
R T e O O oo
Q. The -- at some point, Mr. Storey took on --

22

23

24

25

James Cotter, Vol 2. 5/17/2016

THE WITNESS: I thought it was unusual, but
T also found Ellen and Margaret basically refusing
to report to me unusual. And routine business
matters that ordinarily arose in the company were
being converted into issues of personal dispute 09:43AM
between my sisters and me and issues about control.
And someone recommended that this could be helpful

to move the company forward and deal with those

issues.
BY MR. TAYBACK: 09:43AM
Q. And was the discussion forum disbanded at

some point in time?

MR. KRUM: Objection, wvague and ambiguous,
foundation.

THE WITNESS: I don't know if it was ever 09:44AM
officially disbanded. I think it more kind of
sputtered out.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Tim Storey took on a position of ombudsman. We
discussed that a little bit yesterday.

You recall that? 09:45AM
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A. I do.
Q. Do you recall whose suggestion that was?
MR. KRUM: Objection, foundation.
THE WITNESS: My recollection is that it
wag recommended by the so-called independent
directors.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. And did you concur in that recommendation?

A, Initially, I was not supportive of the
idea.

Q. Why not?

A. Because I didn't think it was necessary.

Q. How was 1t explained to you? How was the

proposal explained to you initially?

A. The proposal that was explained to me where
Tim took on this official role as ombudsman was on,
I believe, March 13th, where Bill Gould asked me and
my two sisters to his office in Century City and
independently described to me with Tim Storey
present that the so-called independent directors had
decided that Tim Storey would become involved as an
ombudsman. There had been complaints raised against
me by my two sisters. I had reported complaints
against my two gisters.

And the board was at a high level and
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1 really wasn't in a position to understand the

2 disputes that were ongoing between me and my two

3 sigters and felt that Tim, who had a lot of

4 experience with corporate governance, could become

5 involved and he would be temporarily given authority 09:47AM
6 to interact with the three of us to investigate what

7 wags going on between me and my two sisters and also

to help move the business forward.

B e o e et
'5mmlﬁﬁ5ﬁﬁwﬂfmﬁﬁiﬁﬁzﬁizgﬁzﬁﬁjjgmmm
o

9 And I understand that that same message was
10 communicated after my meeting with Tim and Bill to 09:47AM
11 my two sisters and that Bill had said that Tim would
12 serve this function at the bequest of the so-called
13 independent directors until sometime in June and
14 would report hig findings to either Bill Gould or to
15 the independent committee, and that would be 09:48AM
16 sometime at the end of June.
T TTT LI
17 Q. And you gaid that you initially were not
18 supportive of this.
19 Did you say that to somebody in words or
20 subgstance, "Hey, this is unnecessary. I don't 09:48AM
21 support thig"?
22 A. I don't recall a specific conversation. I
23 felt that.
24 Q. So you felt it, but you can't say that you
25 communicated it? 09:48AM
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1 What were you referring to by hating
2 putting him on the spot?
3 MR. KRUM: Objection, asked and answered.
4 If you can answer, go ahead.
5 THE WITNESS: This was just a way of 10:23AM
6 communicating to him an issue that arose or that was
7 continuing between myself and Margaret. And I
8 wanted him to be aware of her expectations so that
9 he could appreciate what was going on at the
10 company. 10:24AM
11 BY MR. TAYBACK:
12 Q. And the question that you ended that email
13 with was, "but if the CEO of DNZ" --
14 That's a company in New Zealand; correct?
15 A, It is. 10:24AM
16 Q. "If the CEO of DNZ came to you as
17 chairman with correspondence like this
18 from one of his lieutenants, what advice
19 would you give him?"
20 Did Mr. Storey respond to your gquestion 10:24AM
21 about what advice he would give to a CEO faced with
22 correspondence from one hig lieutenants like this?
23 A. I don't recall.
W\W{W@M
Y 24 Q. You did find it difficult to run the
8
8
§ 25 company with your gisterg, Ellen and Margaret, also 10:25AM
3
§ Page 344
\
E
]
X
§
&

APP_PAGE_0899



10

11

12

T A s o P A Ao

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

James Cotter, Vol 2.

5/17/2016

working at Reading; correct?

MR. KRUM: Objection, wvague and ambiguous,
assumes facts not in evidence.

THE WITNESS: I found it difficult working
with them because, by that point, the issues that I
was having with them relating to the trust and
estate matters had permeated the company, spread to
employees like Linda Pham and ultimately to the
board, and it was difficult because they wanted to
run Reading like a family-owned business and really
didn't want to be accountable to anyone. And so I

found that difficult running the company.

R AR

BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. And did you trust Mr. Storey's judgment?
MR. KRUM: Objection, wvague.
THE WITNESS: At that point in time?

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. Yes.
A. I mean, selectively, I thought he had a lot
of experience. I trusted some of the things he said

but not everything.
Q. You said --
(Off the record.)
BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. You say at that point in time when I asked
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1 Q. Okay. You say in the top part of that
2 email, page 5483, the page ending in that Bates
3 number, the last -- or you say:
4 "Last thing I would want is a
5 board member playing COO." 10:37AM
6 Why is that?
7 A. Because there -- I felt that there was a
8 distinction between the responsibilities of boards
9 and the responsibilities of management.
10 Q. What -- what's the distinction in your 10:38AM
11 mind? What was the distinction at this point in
12 time?
13 A. Well, the board should -- the boards
14 should -- again, I mean, this was also more of a
15 reflection of I wanted to preserve my authority as 10:38AM
16 CEO because I felt that my sisters wanted to hollow
17 out my authority and put limitations and create
18 executive committees that they were reporting to,
19 limit my authorities on approving certain items.
20 And so I wanted to maintain that authority 10:39AM
21 and not have board members playing the role of a
22 chief operating officer.
FUT—
§ 23 Q. Were you -- do you know of a person named
§ 24 Bryant Crouse, C-R-0-U-S-E?
N
% 25 A. I do recall the name. 10:39AM
§ Page 354
3
§

APP_ PAGE_0901



o AL ]

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

James Cotter, Vol 2. 5/17/2016

Q. What do you recall?
A, I recall that a few years ago, one of the
directors -- I believe it was Al Villasenor -- had a

conversation with Bill Gould about this Bryant
Crouse, and they had recommended that he become 10:40AM
involved with the company and perform an assegsment
of our corporate governance or management gstructure.
And this was the time that my dad was
chairman and CEO of the company, before I became
president. And they were both recommending that 10:40AM
this individual get involved in the company and
perform an assegsment and provide recommendations to
the company, to the board, to the management team,

to my father, on ways to improve the management and

corporate governance -- management, I believe, of 10:40AM
Reading.
Q. Were you aware that Mr. Gould and

Mr. Storey met with Mr. Crouse about acting as a

management congultant for the counsel senior

management in the company? 10:41AM
A. I recall that there was a discussion, or I

learned about it at some point.
Q. Do you recall how you learned about it, who

told you?

A. Tt may have been Bill Gould. 10:41AM
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Q. And was it your understanding that they --
that Mr. Crouse had proposed that he could provide
30 hours of time meeting with you and bringing his
expertise to bear on successful management
development for $15,0007 10:41AM
MR. KRUM: Objection, assumes facts not in
evidence, foundation.
THE WITNESS: I think it was the same type
of proposal that they were looking to implement that
they had implemented with my father some years back. 10:41AM
And given the issues that had arisen with my two
sisters, this proposal had arisen again.
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. And the proposal was to meet -- for him to
meet with you for a period of time to explore ways 10:42AM
that he could assist in the company's continued
successful management development, outstanding
leadership, and continued implementation of
organizationally sound management structures? Was
that your understanding as to what he was being -- 10:42AM
A. What --
MR. KRUM: Let me interpose the objections.
Objection, foundation, the document, which
the witness does not have, it gpeaks for itself.

BY MR. TAYBACK: 10:42AM
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1 Q. Was that your understanding as to what he
2 was being asked to do by Mr. Gould and Mr. Storey in
3 April of 20157
4 MR. KRUM: Objection, assumes factg not in
5 evidence, the document speaks for itself, and 10:42AM
6 foundation.
7 THE WITNESS: Again, I had learned that
8 there was a proposal or that there had been
9 discussions with this gentleman that were gsimilar to
10 the proposals that had been made years ago. 10:43AM
11 I don't recall what came of it.
12 THE REPORTER: 185.
13 (Deposition Exhibit 185 was marked for
14 identification.)
15 BY MR. TAYBACK: 10:43AM
16 Q. I'm just going to ask you whether vyou'wve
17 ever seen the written proposal that's reflected here
18 at Exhibit 185.
19 A, I can't recall having seen this document.
20 Q. But is it fair to say that in April, or 10:43AM
21 between the time of April 15th, 2015, and the time
22 you were terminated as CEO, you never actually sat
23 down and met with Mr. Crouse?
24 A. No.
T T
25 Q. IT'm not going to have any more questions. 10:43AM
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1 Q. And are they all in Honolulu?
2 A, They're all on the island of Oahu.
3 Q. Did you visit them all?
4 A. Pretty much. I believe I did.
5 Q. Okay.
6 A. I believe I visited every one of them, vyes.
7 Q. Okay. And did you go with anybody.
8 A. On some occasions, I brought my family.
9 On -- for a lot of the theaters, I went alone.
10 Q. When you went with your family, did you 01:55PM
11 actually view a movie, or did you just go and
12 inspect the property?
13 A. We watched a movie.
14 Q. How many did you go with your family to
15 watch a movie? One or two? 01:55PM
16 A. I can't recall. I don't think it was any
17 more than two. I mean, at most.
R B
% 18 Q. Did -- when you went to the Reading
3
§ 19 theaters in Hawaii, did you identify yourself to any
3
% 20 of the management there as someone who was the CEO 01:55PM
3
% 21 of Reading?
% 22 A. No, I didn't.
3
§ 23 Q. Okay. Why not?
% 24 A. Because I wanted to almost be a mystery
§ 25 shopper. I wanted to experience the theater and the 01:56PM
% Page 447
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\
g 1 theater experience as a normal customer would and as
}
§ 2 a normal family would. And I did not want any
3
§ 3 special treatment. I wanted to see how others
§ 4 experienced the theater.
R —
5 Q. And was the trip a business expense? 01:56PM
6 A. The hot- -- one of the hotel rooms that T
7 had during the seven nights, I expensed. I don't
8 believe I expensed any of the dinners or the
9 airfare.
10 Q. Did you write down notes, do a report of 01:56PM
11 what your observations were?
12 A, I did.
13 Q. And whose -- for whose benefit was that?
14 A. It was for my sister's benefit to prompt
15 her to see some of the issues that I had experienced 01:57PM
16 at the theaters and to prompt her to start thinking
17 about addressing the renovation of the theaters and
18 the condition of the theaters in her business
19 report -- business plan that she was preparing.
20 Q. That's your sister Ellen you're talking 01:57PM
21 about?
22 A. Yes.
23 Q. The report that you wrote, did you -- how
24 long after you -- withdraw that.
25 Did you write it while you were in Hawaii, 01:57PM
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1 statement there that says:
2 "The board stands behind and
3 supports Jim, Jr. as CEO, however, the
4 board expects him to work respectfully
5 and professionally with his sisters.™” 02:36PM
6 It then goes on to say:
7 "The office environment and morale
8 must return to normalcy. Independent
9 directors are investigating Linda's
10 claims and, if proven, the independent 02:36PM
11 directors may require Jim, Jr. to take
12 an anger management class."
13 Have you ever taken an anger management
14 class?
15 A. No. 02:36PM
16 Q. Did anvbody ever suggest to you you should?
17 A. Never. I mean, outside of thig incident
18 with Linda Pham, no.
19 Q. Did you ever hear that the perception at
20 Reading by employees ig that you had a volatile 02:36PM
21 temper?
22 A. No.
23 MR. KRUM: Objection, assumeg facts.
gx\mnm\m‘m‘m
Ny
§ 24 THE WITNESS: I heard it. I heard that.
R
N
§ 25 But I believe that those allegations were brought by 02:37PM
ES
% Page 481
¥ g
%
8
%
3
3
%

APP_ PAGE_0907



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

James Cotter, Vol 2.

5/17/2016

individuals like Linda Pham and Deb Watson, who, as
T described earlier, had been co-opted into this
family dispute, including my sister Ellen.
BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. By whom did you hear that there was a

perception that you had an anger management problem?

A. I heard it from the directors.

Q. At a meeting or individually?

A. I can't recall. It was either -- it's
probably individually or it -- maybe even in gsome of

this correspondence, and a lot of it sgsprung from the
episode with Linda Pham.

Q. And you said that there also was -- you had
an awareneggs that Ms. Watson also had expressed that
perception?

A. Again, I don't think there was any merit at
all to the allegations that were made by Linda Pham
or Deb Watson.

Deb Watson is a -- not even a Reading
employee. She works for Ellen and Margaret on the
trust and estate matters.

Linda Pham was working for Ellen and
Margaret on the trust and estate matters at one time
and had been going through all of the emails at

Reading looking for emails from my father, from me,
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%
§ 1 at E1- -- at, I believe, Ellen and Margaret's
§ 2 direction.
§ 3 So as I said, the direc- -- I asked the
N
§ 4 directors, there ig no basis to these claims, and
§ 5 you should all investigate them. 02:38PM
S N—
6 Q. When you say "these claimg," what was your
7 understanding of Ms. Pham's claim?
8 A. T don't know what her claim was. I know
9 that she had filed a complaint with Doug McEachern
10 saying that I had yelled at her one day. But I've 02:39PM
11 never seen the complaint.
12 And once I heard that, I raised the issue
13 with a number of directors, giving them a full
14 timeline of the events, what I thought was happening
15 between Deb Pham -- Linda Pham, my sister Ellen, and 02:39PM
16 my sister Margaret, and that the board should
17 investigate.
18 Q. So when you say you don't know what her
19 claim was, you haven't seen the claim, but you have
20 gsome understanding of what the claim was? 02:39PM
21 A. That I raised my voice to her at one point,
22 but I haven't seen the claim, so I can't say.
23 Q. And where did you hear -- your
24 understanding that you -- you're expressing here,
25 where did you get that from? 02:40PM
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open.

R A DR RN

Q.

A,

Q.

A.

&m‘mﬁw

Q.

correct?

A.

Q.

correct?

Al

Q.

A. I can't recall a formal policy being
instituted.

Q. I'm sorry?

A. At gsome point, my sister Margaret

complained about me leaving my door shut.

And in regponse to those complaints, which

were communicated to the directors and then

communicated to me, I endeavored to keep my door

So did the directors, then, tell you to

keep your door open while you were in the office?

At some point, someone communicated

something to me.

Someone from the board?
I can't recall.

I'm going to go back and ask you a few

questions about Linda Pham.

She had been your father's assistant;

Yes.

And then after your father passed away,

Yes.

Was she ever your assistant?

at

some point she also became Bill Ellig's assistant;

03:25PM

03:30PM

03:30PM

03:30PM

03:30PM
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1 A No.
W
§ 2 Q. Did you ever yell or raise your voice at
3
% 3 G Adamg?
3 uy :
3
§ 4 A. I did.
3
3
% 5 Q. Describe for me -- well, was it once or 03:40PM
%
§ 6 more than once?
3
\
3
% 7 A, I only recall once.
3
3
§ 8 Q. Describe for me the instance you recall.
N
3 . . :
Y 9 A. It was sometime in 2014, and I said that he
3
b
%
§ 10 had just taken too long working on certain matters 03:40PM
y
3
§ 11 for my father and he had just let things go.
8
X
3 :
§ 12 And I was upset with Guy. And before the
3
\
§ 13 conversation had concluded, I was behind my desk, I
_
X
§ 14 stood up, and I apologized to him for raising my
N
¥
{15 voice. 03:41PM
3
}
§ 16 That was the only occasion that I had with
8
:
§ 17 Guy before my termination.
\
a\\m‘m\m‘m\m
18 Q. On the day that you were terminated, did
19 Bill Ellis ask you to leave the Reading office?
20 A He -- 03:41PM
21 MR. KRUM: When?
22 MR. TAYBACK: On the day he was
23 terminated --
24 MR. KRUM: Well --
25 MR. TAYBACK: -- did Bill Ellis ask him to 03:41PM
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1 BY MR. TAYBACK:
2 Q. And do you recall -- the meeting you recall
3 where that happened, was that before or after you
4 were terminated?
5 MR. KRUM: Objection, assumeg facts not in 03 :53PM
6 evidence.
7 THE WITNESS: I don't recall.
8 BY MR. TAYBACK:
gmm‘mm
\
§ 9 Q. Do you remember Ellen Cotter talking to you
¥
‘g
§1O about the possibility of getting an interim CEO at 03:53PM
§
5
%11 Reading as early as February 2015, someone to
3
5
%12 replace you?
X
3
%13 A. I think they brought it up as early as
3
3
|14 October 2014.
]
3
§15 Q. And did you share with Mr. Storey, at 03:54PM
3
y
%16 least, your concerns about that kind of discussion
]
%
§17 from Ellen Cotter?
§
3
§18 A. I may have.
3
X
%19 Q. And when she brought it up, was her
R
§ZO proposal that the company hire an interim CEO that 03:54PM
3
3
§21 was none of the Cotters?
B
3
%22 A. T don't recall a specific conversation that
3
%
%23 I had with Ellen in February relating to that.
3
t
Y24 Q. You said you think they brought it up or
§
R
3
§25 she brought it up as early as October. 03:54PM
3
3 Page 528
:
N
y
3
\

APP_PAGE_0912



James Cotter, Vol 2. 5/17/2016

%
§
\%
§ 1 What's your first recollection of what she
Ry
y
§ 2 said?
3
X
§ 3 A. Well, either Ellen and/or Margaret said
§
3
§ 4 that, at some point, hey, you know, we're going to
X
§
3
¥ 5 hire an interim CEO to replace vyou. 03 :55PM
: p Y
8
3
% 6 Q. And what did you say to her or them?
F
§
Y 7 A. I don't recall how I responded.
3
8
8
§ 8 Q. Is it fair to say at the time, as of
3
3
§ 9 October at least, you weren't in favor of that?
Y
%
§10 A. As of October of 20147 03:55PM
3
¥
§11 Q. Yes.
3
]
%12 A. Certainly not.
3
3
%13 Q. And did you -- by February, did you start
:
N
%14 to think that maybe that was a more realigtic way of
3
)
¥ 15 Reading managing the businegss while the trust and 03:55PM
§
3
%16 estates matters were sorted out?
\
%
% 17 A, No.
3
y
§ 18 Q. At any point before you were terminated,
3
3
§ 19 did you come to that view?
N
3
§ 20 A. No. 03 :55PM
&m\\mm&w
21 Q. I'm going to ask you to take a look at --
22 While she's getting a document, I'll ask
23 you a couple of questions unrelated to the documents
24 in front of vyou.
25 As a board member at Reading, do you 03:56PM
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES COTTER, JR., derivatively
on behalf of Reading International,
Inc.,

Plaintiff,

vS. Case No.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER, A-15-719860-B

GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS

McEACHERN, TIMOTHY STOREY,

WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY CODDING,

MICHAEL WROTNIAK, and DOES 1

through 100, inclusive,
Defendants.

and
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.,

a Nevada corporation,
Nominal Defendant.

(CAPTION CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE.)

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF JAMES COTTER,
Los Angeles, California
Wednesday, July 6, 2016

Volume ITII

Reported by:

JANICE SCHUTZMAN, CSR No. 9509
Job No. 2343561

Pages 568 - 838
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T2 PARTNERS MANAGEMENT, LP, a
Delaware limited partnership,
doing business as KASE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT, et al.,

Plaintiffs,

vS.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER,
GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS
McEACHERN, WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY
CODDING, MICHAEL WROTNIAK, CRAIG
TOMPKINS, and DOES 1 through 100,
inclusive,

Defendants.
and
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC., a
Nevada corporation,

Nominal Defendant.

Videotaped Deposition of JAMES COTTER,

Volume III, taken at 865 South Figueroa Street,
10th Floor, Los Angeles, California, commencing
at 9:51 a.m. and ending at 5:13 p.m., Wednesday,
July 6, 2016, before Janice Schutzman, CSR No. 95009.

PAGES 568 - 838

JR .,
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MR. KRUM: This is 90 what?

THE REPORTER: 399.

MR. TAYBACK: 399.

MR. KRUM: 398.

MS. LINDSAY: I got it.

MR. TAYBACK: And the number 1is TS 000069

MR. KRUM: I'm pretty sure that some
version of this has been marked previously.

MR. TAYBACK: Maybe. I didn't think so.
BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. Taking a look at that briefly, had you

ever -- I realize you're not on that email, but

7.

looking at that email, which purports to describe a

conversation between you and your sister Ellen, do
you recall her discussing, at least in February of
2015, the possibility of an interim CEO?

Do you remember having that kind of a

conversation with Ellen?

A R R R R RN AR R AR AN R R RRRRAR

A. I remember calling Tim and relating that
Ellen had raised this pogsibility, and that's why
called him.

Q. All right. I'm going to show you a

document that's been previously marked as Exhibit
at Mr. Storey's deposition.

(Previously marked Deposition Exhibit 11

I

11

01:48PM

01:48PM

01:48PM
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wag identified.)
BY MR. TAYBACK:
Q. And this is an email from Mr. Gould to

Mr. Adamg, Mr. Kane, Mr. McEachern, Mr. Storey.
You're, again, not on this, but it attaches a
memorandum from Mr. Gould. And I'm going to -- it's
dated March 6th, 2015.

Tf T could direct your attention to the

third page of the document, which ends in the Bates

stamp 249.
A, Okavy.
Q. Mr. Gould, at the very top of that page --
A. The top of page 37
Q. The top of the third page of the document,

which is page 2 of the memo.
A. Okavy.
Q. You see that?
You see 1it?
A, I do.
Q. Okay. At the very top, there's a sentence
that starts:
We cannot accept a dysfunctional
management team under any circumstances.
Indeed, the company has said in its

public filings that the Cotters will

01:45PM

01:50PM

01:50PM

01:50PM

01:50PM
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14

15

16
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18
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work together notwithstanding the
litigation and they do not believe that
the litigation will affect its company's
operations. But we must ask ourselves,
how can we ensure the three Cotters will
work together given the 'thermonuclear'
hostility currently existing?"

Would you agree that as of March of 2015,
Mr. Gould's characterization of the hostility
between you and your siblings was properly
characterized as thermonuclear?

MR. KRUM: Objection, wvague.

THE WITNESS: No. I wouldn't characterize
the relationship as thermonuclear.

What I would characterize it as -- Margaret
simply refused to report to me. It wasn't just me.
She really refused to be accountable to anyone. And
that created an issue in the company that I believe
Ellen and Margaret artificially created.

So when it's described as, well, there's an
issue in the relationship amongst the Cotters, I
would attribute it to Margaret absolutely refusing
to report to me and her being responsible for
creating this crisis that is being described.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

01:50PM

01:51PM

01:51PM

01:51PM

01:52PM
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Q. Regardless of whoever's fault you believe
it is that you could not get along, would you agree
that the relationship between you and your sisters
within the management of Reading was dysfunctional
by March of 20157

MR. KRUM: Object to the characterization
of the testimony.

You can answer the question.

THE WITNESS: Again, if there's an
executive or an independent contractor who
completely refuses to report to me as CEO and has
done so as early as September/October of 2014 and
has literally refused to report to me, that's
dysfunctional. That's dysfunctional.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. And did you report -- when your termination
wag being discussed, you raised the igsue of your
perception that Margaret was unwilling to report to
yvou to the board; correct?

MR. KRUM: Objection --

THE WITNESS: I think my --

MR. KRUM: -- assumes facts.

THE WITNESS: -- my description might even
have been more. It might have been not just that
she was unwilling to report to me. She was

01:52PM

01:52PM

01:53PM

01:53PM

01:53PM
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§
§1 unwilling to report to anyone. And she didn't want
%2 to have any accountability to anyone. So --
§3 BY MR. TAYBACK:
4 Q. Go ahead. I'm sorry.
5 Ts it -- and is it fair to say that you 01:53PM
6 described to the board a situation which was there
7 was a dysfunctional working relationship between you
8 and your sisters and that they effectively needed to
9 pick either you or your sisters?
10 MR. KRUM: Object to the characterization 01:53PM
11 of the testimony --
12 THE WITNESS: I would nev- --
13 MR. KRUM: Let me interpose my objections.
14 Assumes facts not in evidence.
15 Go ahead. 01:54PM
16 THE WITNESS: I would never characterize
17 the issue that I had, especially with Margaret and
18 her abject refusal to report to me, as a
19 dysfunctional relationship because that implies that
20 two people in a relationship are both contributing 01:54PM
21 to the dysfunctionality of their relationship.
22 BY MR. TAYBACK:
23 Q. So you're saying, in your mind at least,
24 the word dysfunctional suggests you would be
25 contributing to dysfunctionality, but you weren't? 01:54PM
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MR. KRUM: Objection, assumegs factg not in
evidence, including of the witness seeing
Exhibit 11.

MR. TAYBACK: ©Let me -- I'll rephrase the
question.

BY MR. TAYBACK:

R R

Q. Isn't it correct that in March of 2015, vyou
understood that the board would assess how the
management of the company was functioning,
specifically you and your sisters, to make an
asgsessment about what they should do?

A, No.

At the meeting on March 13th, Bill Gould
and Tim Storey communicated to me and independently
to Ellen and Margaret that Tim would make a
recommendation as newly appointed ombudsman and
would report hig findings and his recommendations to
the independent directors of the board, not to the
full board, but only to the independent directors.
And the independent directors would then, based on
his findings, possibly take actions in response to

those findings and recommendations.

B R RS

Q. And was that agreement, as you understood
it, memorialized in writing somewhere?

MR. KRUM: Objection, foundation.

01:58PM

01:58PM

01:58PM

01:59PM

01:59PM
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1 BY MR. TAYBACK:
2 Q. Yes or no?
3 A. Well, T mean, I think there may have been
4 memos to that effect.
5 Q. Have you seen a memo that describes that 01:59PM
6 process that you just described?
7 A. I can't recall, sitting here today,
8 without, you know, going through the emails.
9 But yes, I mean, I -- it was clear to me,
10 to Ellen and Margaret, certainly to Bill Gould and 01:59PM
11 Tim Storey and the other directors, that that was
12 the case.
glmm‘mm
§ 13 Q. Do you agree with me that the board of a
3
% 14 company always has the prerogative to make a
§ 15 decision with resgspect to the hiring and firing of 02:00PM
]
% 16 its executives, the company's executives, subject to
3
% 17 whatever contracts might exist.
% 18 MR. KRUM: Objection, wvague and ambiguous,
3
% 19 may call for a legal conclusion.
3
% 20 THE WITNESS: Do I agree what? 02:00PM
% 21 BY MR. TAYBACK:
3
% 22 Q. That the board of a company --
3
% 23 A, Right.
% 24 Q. -- has the power to hire and fire a CEO?
3
% 25 MR. KRUM: Same objections, incomplete 02:00PM
\
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§
§ 1 hypothetical as well.
§
§ 2 THE WITNESS: Subject to agreements made,
N
§ 3 written contracts made.
3
% 4 BY MR. TAYBACK:
§
% 5 Q. Subject to the terms of a contract; 02:00PM
8
% 6 correct?
§ 7 A, Subject to the terms of a contract --
% 8 Q. Yes.
%
3 . :
Y 9 A. -- or possibly a resolution. Sure.
10 Q. And is there anything about what you're 02:00PM
11 describing that you think limited the power of the
12 board to terminate you as CEO if it believed doing
13 so was in the best interest of the company?
14 MR. KRUM: Same objections.
15 THE WITNESS: I believe in January of 2015, 02:01PM
16 a resolution was passed at the insistence of my
17 sigters that they couldn't be terminated.
18 Ellen could not be terminated as an
19 executive without the approval of the majority of
20 the independent directors. 02:01PM
21 Margaret's contract with -- for her live
22 theater operation could not be terminated without
23 the majority of the independent directors.
24 And my employment as CEO could not be
25 terminated without a majority of the independent 02:01PM
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR.,
individually and
derivatively on behalf of
Reading International,
Inc.,

Plaintiff,
Coordinated with:
vs.

MARGARET COTTER, et al.,

Defendants.
and

READING INTERNATIONAL,
INC., a Nevada
corporation,

Nominal Defendant
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VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF ELLEN COTTER
TAKEN ON MAY 18, 2016

VOLUME 1

REPORTED BY:

PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, CSR #3400

Case No. A-15-719860-B

Cacse No. P-14-082942-FE
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Page 156

1 conversation, about a repopulated and newly

2 chartered executive committee of the RDI board of

3 directors prior to the meeting of June 12, 20157

4 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Asked and

5 answered.

6 THE WITNESS: As I said, I don't recall

7 specific conversations with Craig about this.

8 BY MR. KRUM:

9 Q. You don't recall speaking to him; is

10 that right?

11 A, I don't recall speaking to him. But I

12 speak to Craig a lot, so, very well this -- this

13 subject would have come up.

14 Q. Did you speak to Bill Ellis prior to the

15 meeting of June 12, 2015 with respect to a

16 repopulated and newly chartered executive committee

17 of the RDI board of directors?

18 A. I don't recall if I spoke to Bill.
WMT?mmmmmmmmmgfmm Did you speak to Frank Reddick prior to

20 the meeting of June 12, 2015 about a repopulated and

21 newly chartered executive committee of the RDI board

22 of directors?

23 A, Frank Reddick of Akin Gump?

24 Q. Yes.

25 A, I did.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationgerviceg.com
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Page 157

Q. I'm not asking you who said what.

When did that conversation or those
conversations occur?

A, I don't remember.

Q. Was it prior to May 21, 20157

A. I don't -- I don't recall.

Q. Do you recall that May 21, 2015 was the
first supposed meeting of the RDI board of directors
where the subject was the termination of Jim Cotter,
Jr., as president and C.E.0.? Do you recall that
date and that meeting?

A. I recall May 21, 2015.

Q. Okay. And you do not recall, with that
particular meeting and date in mind, whether you had
spoken with Frank Reddick about a repopulated and
newly chartered RDI board of directors prior to that
date May 217

A. I don't remember.

Q. I'm not asking you what you said and
what he said.

Who else was present for or party to
that conversation or conversations?

A. Conversationsg about what?

Q. Okay. Directing your attention,

Ms. Cotter, to your conversation or your

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationgerviceg.com
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1 conversations with Frank Reddick of Akin Gump about
2 a repopulated and newly chartered executive
3 committee of the RDI board of directors, was anyone
4 else present or privy to that conversation or those
5 conversations?
6 A. I don't remember.
7 Q. Were they in person or by phone or both?
8 A. I don't -- I don't remember.
9 Q. Was Guy Adams either present in person
10 or telephonically for any such conversation with
11 Frank Reddick?
12 A. I don't recall.
13 Q. Was Craig Tompkins either present in
14 person or telephonically during such conversation
15 with Frank Reddick?
16 A. I don't recall.
17 Q. Who retained Akin Gump with respect to
18 or related to the termination of Jim Cotter, Jr., as
19 president and C.E.QO. of RDI?
20 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.
21 THE WITNESS: Akin Gump had been our
22 counsel for a long time.
23 BY MR. KRUM:
24 Q. When --
25 A, SO --
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationgerviceg.com
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1 Q. Go ahead.

2 A. Yeah. So I mean they've been -- they'wve

3 been with us probably for 20 years.

4 Q. Well, is -- so are you saying that they

5 weren't -- that they were on retainer and that there

6 was no new retainer? Is that your point?

7 A. They had been working for us for a long

8 time. We didn't have a retainer with them.

9 Q. Okay. So, who first contacted Akin Gump
10 with respect to or related to the termination of Jim
11 Cotter, Jr., as president and C.E.O. of RDI?

12 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.

13 THE WITNESS: Yeah. I don't -- I don't

14 remember.

15 BY MR. KRUM:

16 Q. Well, how did you first learn or hear

17 that Akin Gump was engaged in connection with or

18 respect to the termination or possible termination

19 of Jim Cotter, Jr., as president and C.E.O. of RDI?

20 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Assumes facts,

21 lacks foundation.

22 THE WITNESS: I don't recall who reached

23 out to Akin Gump first.

24 BY MR. KRUM:

25 Q. I'm asking about when you first learned
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationgerviceg.com
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Page 160
of something. Okay?
And so let me just ask the question --
A. Yeah.
Q. -- 80 we have a clear record. And you

can answer it or, you know, we'll go to another
question.

How did you first learn of Akin Gump
providing services with respect to or in connection
with the termination or possible termination of Jim
Cotter, Jr., as president and C.E.O. of RDI?

MR. SEARCY: And when you answer that
question, only answer it without disclosing the
substance of any communications --

MR. KRUM: Right.

MR. SEARCY: -- that you may have had
with Akin Gump.

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. I don't -- sorry,
you guys. What --

BY MR. KRUM:
Q. Do you want me to have the court
reporter read it back for you?
A, Yeah. Sorry.
MR. KRUM: Please.
(Whereupon the question was read

as follows:

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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"Question: How did you first

learn of Akin Gump providing

services with respect to or in

connection with the termination or

possible termination of Jim

Cotter, Jr., as president and

C.E.O. of RDI?")

THE WITNESS: I don't remember how I did
it, how I -- 1if I called or if somebody else called.
I don't remember when. But Larry Levien --

MR. SEARCY: Okay. You're starting to

disclose --

THE WITNESS: Oh, okay. Sorry.

MR. SEARCY: I don't want you disclosing
any -- any conversationsg that you had.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Well, if you would please continue about
Larry Levien, but do so heeding Mr. Searcy's
admonition. Because I'm not asking you about
anything that anybody said to anybody at Akin Gump
or anything that anybody at Akin Gump said to
anybody else.

A. Larry Levien had been our labor counsel.

So, Larry was contacted. And I can't remember who

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationgerviceg.com
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Page 162
1 made the first contact. If it was me -- I don't
2 remember.
3 Q. Was it Guy Adams?
4 A. I don't remember.
5 Q. Understand. When I ask a question of
6 that nature, I'm testing and prompting your
7 recollection.
8 A. Yeah.
9 Q. Sometimes it doesn't --
10 A, No. I appreciate that. I don't
11 remember.
12 MR. SEARCY: Mark, when we're at a
13 natural breaking point, let me know.
14 MR. KRUM: Sure. You want to break,
15 right?
16 MR. SEARCY: Yeah.
17 MR. KRUM: Yeah. We'll do it in a
18 minute -- minute or two.
19 VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: 35 minutes left.
20 BY MR. KRUM:
21 Q. Did there come a point in time when you
22 had -- strike that.
23 Did there come a point in time prior to
24 May 21, 2015, when you had communications with Frank
25 Reddick?
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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A. Prior to May 21, 20157
MR. FERRARIO: On anything or some
business --
MR. KRUM: Anything. It's a threshold
foundational guestion.
THE WITNESS: I did.
BY MR. KRUM:
Q. And how many such communications were
there, as best you can recall?
A, I don't remember.
Q. When was the first time you communicated

with Mr. Reddick?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Was it within a month prior to May 21,
20157

A. I don't recall.

Q. Was it in or after September -- well,

was it in the fall of 2014%?

A, No. But I don't remember -- I don't
remember our first communication.

Q. Okay. When you say "no," does that mean
it was after the fall of 20147?

A. Yes.

Q. Understand I'm just asking for your best

recollection of a time frame. Because I heard you

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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1 when you don't remember the date.

2 A, Uh-huh.

3 Q. So it was at some point in 2015, prior
4 to May 21, 2015; is that right?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Was it prior to your meeting with

7 Mr. Adams in Beverly Hills?

8 A. I don't remember.

9 Q. Was anyone else present for or party to
10 the initial communication you had with Mr. Reddick?
11 A, I don't remember.

12 Q. Do you recall ever having -- strike

13 that.

14 At any time prior to May 21, 2015, did

15 you ever have any communications with Mr. Reddick to
16 which any other person was party or privy?

17 A, Guy Adams -- yeah. I don't -- I know

18 Guy spoke to Frank with me, but I don't remember
19 anything else.

20 Q. Do you recall when that was, whether by
21 time frame or point of reference to any other event?
22 A, NoO.

23 Q. Was that in person or by telephone?

24 A. I don't remember.

25 Q. And do you recall if for any reason

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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1 other than what was discussed?
2 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.
3 THE WITNESS: What's your question?
4 What did I discuss at these --
5 BY MR. KRUM:
6 Q. No. No. That's not the question.
7 How is it that you -- what is it that

8 prompts you to recall that you did have a
9 conversation with Mr. Reddick to which Mr. Adams was

10 party?

11 Do you remember where you were at the
12 time? Do you remember what was discussed?
13 What enables you to remember that is

14 what I'm asking, not what was discussed.
15 A. I remember Guy because Guy knew who
16 Frank Reddick was. He had worked with him before.

17 So I don't remember the specifics of the

18 conversation.

19 Q. Okay. I'm not asking about the

20 conversation.

21 MR. KRUM: Marshall, why don't we take a
22 break.

23 MR. SEARCY: Thanks. Yes.

24 VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: We are off the

25 record.
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Page 86
1 2015 to terminate Jim Cotter, Jr., as president and

2 C.E.O., that Ellen and Margaret both purported to

3 vote?

4 A. T do have that recollection.

5 Q. Was there any discussion of whether they

6 should vote or whether they had standing to vote?

7 MR. HELPERN: Objection to form.
8 MR. SWANIS: Join.
9 THE WITNESS: I don't -- I actually

10 don't recall that right now. I don't remember it.

11 BY MR. KRUM:

AR

12 Q. What were your thoughts at the time as
13 to whether they should vote or whether they should
14 have been recused or disqualified with re- --

15 regarding the termination of Jim Cotter, Jr.?

16 MR. SWANIS: Same objections.

17 MR. HELPERN: Join.

18 THE WITNESS: My thoughts at the time

19 were that even without their votes, the party -- the

20 parties moving to vote for his termination had

21 sufficient votes to -- to accomplish what they

,5WW_&?}WJ%%W%%%%§%@H§%%%%§”HWJME

o

22 wanted to do.

R R RN R R R AR

23 BY MR. KRUM:

A

24 Q. You mean three -- you mean three of

25 five?
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1 A. That would have been in late April,
2 early May 2015.
3 Q. What happened then?
4 A. There was a notice sent out to the board
5 indicating there would be a meeting to discuss,
6 among other things, the status of the -- something

7 like this, the status of the C.E.O0. or something

8 like that.

9 And I called for an independent board

10 meeting to find out what this was all about and what

11 the issues were.

12 And that's when I first heard it.
wmm-m\m*
\ L} L]
1|13 Q. How did you first hear?

14 A. At some meeting we had -- there were

15 several meetings, so0 excuse me 1f I'm not specific

16 about which one on which date.

17 But at this meeting I heard the three
18 other directors, Tim -- not Tim Storey, but Guy,
19 Doug and Ed Kane say they felt that -- that Jim's

20 performance was such that he should be replaced.

N R R

21 Q. Was that at the first supposed board

7

22 meeting pursuant to the -- where the agenda item was

23 status of president and C.E.O0.7?

24 MR. SWANIS: Objection to form.
25 THE WITNESS: No. It was before that.
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1 Does that refresh your recollection
2 that -- that it was in March of 2015 that the five

3 non-Cotter directors agreed to Tim Storey being a

4 committee of one or the ombudsman to work with the

5 Cotters?

6 A. Yes.
7 MR. SWANIS: Objection to form.
8 MR. HELPERN: Join.

9 BY MR. KRUM:

10 Q. Now, did the -- did the conference call
11 of March 12 occur that's referenced both in the

12 cover email Exhibit 11 and the --

13 A. Yes, it did.

14 Q. And who said what during that call

15 regarding Tim Storey serving as a committee of one
16 or ombudsman to work with the Cotters?

17 A, Well, I think all the directors felt

18 that that was a reasonable approach to try. And it
19 was felt by -- by everybody that hopefully Tim could
20 accomplish three things. First of all, he would

21 mediate -- help mediate the disputes among the three
22 family members; secondly, he would monitor the

23 progress of how Jim, Jr., was coming along and how
24 the other siblings were doing, as well; and finally

25 he would report back to the board as to how he

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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§ 1 viewed the progress of -- of these relationships.

§

% 2 And everybody seemed to agree with that.

S

R R R RN

3 Q. When you say "everybody seemed to

4 agree," you mean that no one said anything in words

5 or substance that communicated -- well, strike that.
6 Why do you say everyone seemed to agree?
7 A. Well, the only issue I can remember was

8 the fact that we were worried about Tim's time. He
9 lived in Auckland, and he had to fly over here and
10 spend time. And we knew it would be time consuming

11 and expensive.

12 And he indicated he would be willing to
13 do it.
14 Q. What did -- when you say he would help

15 mediate the disputes among the three family members,
16 to what are you referring?

17 A. I'm referring to the fact that on one

18 hand Jim was saying that Ellen wasn't giving him

19 the -- her business plan, and she -- Margaret was

20 being -- refusing to do -- excuse me -- to provide
21 anything.

22 And they were gsaying that Jim was making
23 unreasonable demands on them and he was asking them
24 for things that he shouldn't be asking them for.

25 So, Tim, who is a very successful and
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1 foundation.
2 MR. HELPERN: Join.
3 THE WITNESS: Yes. We did not wait
4 until the end of June.
5 BY MR. KRUM:
6 Q. Both you and Mr. Storey expressed to

7 Messrs. Kane, Adams and McEachern that the process
8 should be completed, correct?
9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Did any of them provide any response

11 other than to communicate that they were unwilling

12 to allow that to happen?

13 MR. HELPERN: Objection to form.
14 MR. SWANIS: Join.
me?mmmmmmmm THE WITNESS: They clearly made the
16 statements that you had said, that they -- they felt

17 that they were convinced that Jim's performance was
18 such that it had to be cut off at an earlier point;
19 that the time had come to make a decision, and we

20 should not wailt the extra month or so to get Tim

W

W’

21 Storey's final report.

S-S LA

22 Q. Did any of the -- any of Messrs. Kane,

23 Adams or McEachern ever provide any responses to any

24 interim reports provided by Mr. Storey?
25 MR. HELPERN: Objection. Lacks
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1 A. Uh-huh.
2 Q. Do you see that item number one says
3 "Present status"?
4 A. Right.
5 Q. To what did that refer?
6 A Well, that was intended to refer, as I
7 recall, to how things are going at the company at
8 that time.
9 Q. Ttem two, "Tim's involvement," to what
10 did that refer?
11 A, That -- that referred to how Tim was
12 coming along in his capacity as what we called at
13 that time ombudsman.
14 Q. Ombudsman being the same role as the
15 committee of one --
16 A. The committee of one.
mm??mmmmmmmmmgﬁm Item three reads, quote,
18 "Face-to-face meeting of
19 independent directors in June
20 before the shareholders meeting to
21 assess status," close quote.
22 Do you see that?
23 A Yes.
24 Q. To what did that refer?
25 A, That referred to what we had always
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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§ 1 sald, that we were going to get a report from Tim

§ 2 and then make a final decision on whether gome or

§ 3 all of the Cotter family members would have to

R

% 4 improve their performance or change their -- what

§ 5 they were doing.

W\m‘

§ 6 Q. What does that mean when you say

§ 7 "improve their performance or change what they were

% 8 doing?

8

§ 9 A. Well, in other words, if the -- the

§ 10 situation could not continue the way it was

o

% 11 indefinitely with this hostile bickering.

o

§ 12 And at some point, if certain people

§ 13 were chronic offenders, we'd have to consider

3

% 14 terminating them.

% 15 Q. As of April 2, 2015, had you had any

% 16 communications with any other non-Cotter member of

3

§ 17 the RDI board of directors about the subject or

=

§ 18 possibility of terminating one or more of the

N

§ 19 Cotters?

§ 20 A. The subject came up that we had to be

}

% 21 prepared, if the situation did not correct itself

% 22 within a reasonable period of time, to take drastic

2

% 23 steps which might involve terminating one or more of

% 24 the Cotters.

mm??mmmmm Q. When did that subject first arise?
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1 THE WITNESS: I think it was unclear. I
2 think nobody knew the correct answer there.
3 I mean the letter itself on its face,
4 you know, if you had prior dealings with these
5 people, you knew what their style was -- without
6 more information we wouldn't have a defin- -- we
7 couldn't have a definitive answer.
8 So I don't think anybody had a firm
9 feeling as to what the issue was.
10 BY MR. KRUM:
11 Q. If Margaret Cotter had felt wvindicated
12 with respect to how she handled it, at the end of
13 that meeting, do you think that she understood what
14 people said to her?
15 MR. SWANIS: Objection. Form,
16 foundation.
17 MR. HELPERN: Join. Calls for
18 speculation.
19 THE WITNESS: No. I can't speculate. I
20 don't know.
21 BY MR. KRUM:
22 Q. Well, did you say anything that you
23 intended to communicate to her that she had been
24 vindicated by the discussion?
2;mmmmmmm A. T don't --I don't remember saying
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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1 anything at that meeting.

2 But she certainly hadn't been vindicated
3 at that point. But she later was vindicated when
4 the Court ruled in Reading's favor, RDI's favor.

TR AR R RN R

5 Q. When you say she was vindicated, does

W

6 that mean that it was acceptable to have not
7 previously disclosed the February 6th letter or that

8 on the merits of the issues --

9 A. On the merits.
10 Q. -- she was correct?
11 A, On the merits she was correct.
12 Q. Did any other RDI director other than

13 you and other than Jim Cotter, Jr., say anything
14 during that meeting that led you to believe they
15 understood the distinction between the subject of
16 disclosing the February 6th letter to the C.E.O., at
17 least, if not to the board and the subject of the

18 merits of the dispute with the Stomp producers?

19 MR. HELPERN: Object to form, wvague.
20 MR. SWANIS: Join.

21 THE WITNESS: There were general

22 digscussions among the others, saying -- you know,

23 questioning whether there was sufficient notice in

24 that original February 6th letter to cause Margaret
25 to turn it over to Jim.
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1 plan was done by the board to assist Jim with his

2 C.E.O. duties.

3 Q. What plan was that?

4 A, You know, I don't have any details from

5 it. All T know ig that apparently Tim Storey was

6 given some kind of mandate to help out Jim.

7 Q. Okay. Do you know what the nature of

8 that mandate was?

9 A. I never saw anything in writing. I
10 don't really know.
11 Q. Other than what you've testified, did
12 you have any other source of information that you
13 characterized as questioning of Jim's performance by
14 the board?
15 A. Just what I heard from board members.
16 Q. What did you hear, if anything, other
17 than what you've already testified?
18 A. Just 1in meetings some of the stuff he

19 did was questioned, as -- as happens at every board

20 meeting.

R ol

21 Q. Do you recall any particular matter or
22 item or issue or subject?
23 A, There were some concerns about Jim's

24 behavior that the board looked at.

25 Q. Anything else?

D D D S e e A A A o 7 PP A A A
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Page 56
A. Not in terms of any particular decision
that he made the board questioned. It was more
behavior and experience.
Q. Okay. By "behavior," you're referring
to what?
A. Temperament and what I think people

characterized as anger issues.
Q. Well, I'm asking who said what.
Whether you could characterize it as

behavior or temperament or anger issues, I'm asking

what did you -- what did you hear or learn, not what
did you -- not how do you sum them up today.
A. I heard a couple stories about angry

outbursts of Jim's that were, I believe, shared with
the board; not by me, but I believe shared with the
board.

Q. Angry outbursts in the presence of you
or directed at home?

A, Incidents involving people in the
office; my former assistant, Linda Pham, accountant,
outside estate accountant, Debbie Watson, Ellen.

Again, I didn't witnesgs any of these.

These were stories that were shared around the
office.

Q. Did you ever observe an angry outburst
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1 by Jim Cotter, Jr.?

2 A. We shared a thin wall. I did hear him
3 yvelling at times. I can't pin down the subject or
4 when. Just it's just a recollection. Our walls

5 were very thin.

L TUU TUT U S L

6 Q. Did you ever tell -- were you ever asked

Wm’mﬂwﬁm

7 by any member of the RDI board of directors whether
8 you witnessed any angry outbursts by Jim?

9 A. I don't recall.
10 Q. Did you ever tell them whether you had
11 or that you had not?

12 A. I don't recall anyone asking or -- Or me
13 telling.
14 Q. And with respect to your testimony that
15 you did hear him yelling at times, do you know

16 whether that was when Margaret Cotter was in his

17 office or on the other phone -- end of the line of
18 the phone?

19 A, I don't -- I don't know that.
20 Q. Did you ever hear or learn or were you
21 ever told that Linda Pham had developed a personal
22 relationship with either or both Margaret and/or
23 Ellen Cotter?
24 A. I don't understand the term "personal

25 relationship."
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replace the board of directors at RDI?
A, Certainly a majority.
Q. Would you seek to replace any of the

executives at RDI?

R R R AR AR

A. That is quite likely.

Q. Would you reinstate Jim Cotter, Jr., as
CEO?

A. Probably not.

Q. Ckay. Why wouldn't you reinstate Jim
Cotter, Jr., as CEO?

A. Because I think the well has been poisgsoned

with the war among the giblings, and to give the
company a fresh start, we'd conduct -- we'd rehire
Korn Ferry and do -- and pick up the process where

we left off and find the very best CEO we could for

the company.

And if Ellen and Jim Cotter, Jr., wanted to

be considered as part of that process, they would be

welcome to throw their hats in the ring. But I

think it's unlikely, both because I think we could
find somebody better, one, and, two, because of the
bad blood and the war that's gone on between the

gsiblings, among the giblings, that it would probably

be best to bring in an outsider.

Q. With respect to the rehiring Jim Cotter,
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Jr., you said likely wouldn't do it. The reason you

gave igs that the well is poisoned.

A. Yes.

Q. Any other reason?

A. I'd want to see the other candidates that
we can surface for this. It's not clear to me that,

in the entire world, that he is the single best
qualified person to run this company.

Q. Tt's your expectation there are other
candidates who might be more qualified than Jim

Cotter, Jr., to act as CEO of the company?

A, I think there's a reasonable likelihood.
Q. And why do you say that?
A, General long experience with nepotism,

when, you know, a father appoints his son to f£ill
his shoes. I can't say I've had enormous amounts of
experience with this, both directly through my own
investing or otherwise, but my general sense isgs that
just because you happen to have the game genetic
code of the person who founded and built the company
doesn't make you the best qualified CEO.

But that's a secondary reason. The primary
reason is, is the well ig poisoned, and if we're
going to get a clean start of this company, that we

should bring in an outside CEO who doesn't -- who

01:50PM

01:50PM

01:51PM

01:51PM

01:51PM
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isn't -- I have to imagine the wvast majority of the
employees of RDI are on one gibling's side or the

other. And so to have one sibling or another be the

CEO means you're still going to have a divided
company. That's what I mean by the well being

poisoned.

Q. Have you conducted any investigation to see

if anyone at the company is on one sibling's side or

the other sibling's gside?

A. No. I don't know anyone at the company.

SEEEELASLSAR A A AL A R R R e o

Q. Have you conducted any investigation or

looked into Jim Cotter, Jr.'s record while he was

CEO at RDI?

A. Not extensive. He was CEO for a couple
quarters, maybe two quarters when -- as a public
company before he was forced out. The company
seemed to be doing okay. I met him once for 20
minutes. Seemed to be a reasonable guy. But I
don't have deep knowledge or opinion about his
tenure as CEO.

Q. Other than he seemed to you to be doing

generally okay, do you have any knowledge about what

he did or didn't accomplish as CEO?

A. Not really. The company seemed to be going

along, running its cash cow theater operations
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reasonably well and taking steps to develop the two
properties in New York City, for example. There was
nothing that was a real outlier, either positive or

negative,

CEO.

give grounds for the board coup that ousted him

based on any kind of failures that he had as the

CEO,

to a political family struggle and the ultimatum the 01:54PM
sisters presented him with, that that was the

motivation for his ouster and not any poor

and I certainly believe that he was ousted due

S L L D ]

I certainly didn't see anything that would

performance as CEO.

Q. Well, we'll come back to the rest of what
you just said. I mean -- 01:54PM
A. I'm sure.
Q. What you said was "not really," right, when
it came to your assessment of Jim Cotter, Jr.'s
performance as CEO?
A, Uh-huh. 01:54PM
Q. Is it correct that --
THE REPORTER: Was that an answer?
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. I shouldn't have
said "uh-huh."
Go ahead. 01:54PM
Page 153

in the couple quarters that he was the

01:53PM

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_PAGE_0959



3
8
%
&
§ 1 BY MR. SEARCY:
]
%
% 2 Q. Is it correct that you can't identify
8
§
§ 3 really anything positive or negative about his
8
3
§ 4 tenure as you previously tegstified?
X
3
% 5 A. What I said is any -- I believe I gaid an 01:54PM
% Y Y
N
N\
% 6 outliers, anything he did that was shockingly
o
3
3
§ 7 positive or shockingly negative. It was sort of
N
)
8 : .
§ 8 steady as she goegs during his tenure as CEO.
o
3
§ 9 Q. Other than "steady as she goes," can you
: g Y
§
8
\ 10 identify anything positive? 01:55PM
%
%
§11 A. Not off the top of my head.
3
\
%12 Q. And in terms of steady as she goes, are you
§ .
§ 13 able to qualify that at all?
3
3
%14 A. That the business performed in line with my
ﬁ
3
§ 15 expectations, in line with previous trends, which is 01:55PM
3
}
§ 16 the business was doing fairly well.
3
3
Y 17 Q. And is -- the business is currentl
3 Y
b
3
§ 18 performing in line with previous trends; correct?
;\,;.
h
% 19 A. Yes.
)
N . . : .
§ 20 Q. And with respect to anything negative, did 01:55PM
%
§
§ 21 you have any negative observations about Jim Cotter,
3
3
§ 22 Jr., as CEO?
3
3
Y 23 A. No.
L*mm*m\mw
24 Q. You identified Korn Ferry as being the
25 organization that you would look to to conduct a CEO 01:56PM
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search; correct?

A,

since we've already hired and paid them a couple
hundred thousand dollars,
phone call I would make if I were making the

decision as to who to pick up and continue the CEO

It was a little bit tongue in cheek, but

search that was aborted.

Q.

Well, vyou would expect them to provide an

unbiased search for CEO; correct?

A,

Q.

using them begin to search for a CEO at RDI;

correct?

A,

to the contrary.

2SS UL U AU A A

Q.

Yes.

And you wouldn't have any qualms about

Not based on any information I have today

And I've been asking you about the

potential reinstatement of Jim Cotter, Jr.,

which

you said that you would not be in favor of in

connection with this motion for preliminary

injunction.

A.

Q.

question.

A.

Uh-huh.

Let me ask you a now slightly different

If T2 were to succeed in its lawsuit -

Uh-huh.

they would be the first

01:56PM

01:56PM

01:56PM

01:57PM
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§ 1 Q. -- would --
§ 2 A, Sorry.
§
% 3 Q. -- T2 seek the reinstatement or rehiring of
Ry
§ 4 Jim Cotter, Jr., as CEO?
N
§ 5 A No. 01:57PM
&
§ 6 Q. Those -- for the same reasonsgs that you
8
§ 7 previously identified in connection with preliminary
N
§ 8 injunction?
§
10 Q. Earlier you talked about a lawsuit -- class 01:57PM
11 action lawsuit that you were the lead plaintiff on
12 against a golf sportswear company?
13 A, Yes.
14 Q. You described that as a friendly lawsuit?
15 A Yes. 01:58PM
16 Q. Do you consider the current lawsuit to be a
17 friendly suit?
18 A No.
19 Q. Has there ever been a gituation where
20 you've ever opposed the sale of a company? 01:58PM
21 A. No.
22 Q. How many timesg, as a shareholder in a
23 company. Have you pushed for the sale of a company
24 as best you can recall?
25 A. I'm having trouble thinking of any 01:59PM
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not the level, certainly, that I once had.

R R R AR AR R NN

Q. And though the amended complaint makes
reference to reinstatement of Jim Cotter, Jr.,
that's not something you'd seek; correct?

A. I personally, speaking only for myself, am

not an advocate for returning him to the CEO

position.
Q. Do you know if Mr. Glaser ig?
A, I don't believe he is.
Q. Okay. Do you know if Mr. Shapiro is?
A, I don't know.
Q. Okay. So to your knowledge, because you

and Mr. Glaser are the plaintiffs in this case, two
of the plaintiffs, and seeking a remedy for
yourself, you would not be seeking to have

Mr. Cotter, Jr., reinstated; correct?

A. No.

Q. I asked you a guestion in a negative, and
you answered in a negative. So as a result, I have
to --

A. Okavy.

Q. -- reask it again.

It's correct that you and Mr. Glaser would
not seek reinstatement of Jim Cotter, Jr.?

A, That ig correct.

B RS

Page 176

02:30PM

02:31PM

02:31PM

02:31PM

02:31PM

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_PAGE_0963



Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

1 Q. Well, let me back up because I'm not sure
2 that you actually answered my question. Okay?
3 A. IT've been known to do that.
4 Q. And I asked you if the status guo has
5 remained the same at RDI since October of 2014. 02 :38PM
6 Do you recall that?
7 A, I do.
8 Q. And you made reference to -- you used the
9 term "thermonuclear war"?
10 A. Again. 02:38PM
11 Q. You used that to describe the dispute
12 between the siblings?
13 A, Yes.
&‘m‘mm
§ 14 Q. Since the termination of Jim Cotter, Jr.,
§
§ 15 at RDI, has the status gquo changed at all? 02:38PM
N
g 16 A. Which status quo? Between the war among
N
g 17 the siblings or the business operationg?
3
% 18 Q. The business operations.
§ 19 A. That -- that's remained pretty steady
3
§ 20 during the entire period. 02:38PM
3
§ 21 Q. Even enduring the time that you described
§ 22 as the thermonuclear war; correct?
§ 23 A. Correct.
3
% 24 Q. Okay.
]
% 25 A. Much to my surprise, the company's regults 02:38PM
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§
§
§ 1 have not been -- appear to the outside, appear to
3
§ 2 have been crippled by their war going on, which I'm,
2
% 3 frankly, pleased by.
T N S
4 Q. So though vyvou've used the term
5 "thermonuclear war," the actions of the sisters 02:39PM
6 during the thermonuclear war hasn't had any negative
7 impact on the operations or the business of the
8 company; correct?
9 A, It's hard for me to know what it would have
10 been in the absence of the, I must imagine, 02:39PM
11 significant amount of time that they'wve been
12 spending at war with their brother.
13 But I will say that I'm pleased and
14 relieved that what I thought could be a war that
15 could spill over and really impair the operations of 02:39PM
16 the business and become a huge distraction does not
17 appear to have been, and I credit them for being
18 able to do that.
19 Q. So the answer igs, just to be clear, you
20 haven't observed any negative impact; correct? 02:39PM
21 A. There are a couple things in the filing
22 about, you know, the repayment of some of the
23 interest payments and some of the debts, et cetera.
24 But in terms of the general operations of
25 the business, yes, I have not observed any negative 02:40PM
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June 1, 2016, before Janice Schutzman, CSR No. 9509.

PAGES 1 - 293

Page 2

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_PAGE_0968



JONATHAN GLASER 06/01/2016

1 point, we would have looked at it carefully to
2 figure out which -- those were potential folks. We
3 hadn't made any decisions.
4 Q. Have you at any point actually proposed
5 names of potential board members to anyone at 01:39PM
6 Reading?
7 A. I don't believe so. I don't think I
8 mentioned any names in my conversation with Andrzej.
9 Q. Have you discussed with anybody whether
10 there would be -- whether you would like to see 01:39PM
11 changes made in Reading's management, that is to
12 say, a new CEQO or --
RN S
% 13 A, No. I -- when -- well, the answer's no, I
8
§ 14 haven't discussed with anybody changes in
§
% 15 management . 01:39PM
3
§ 16 And when Ellen was named permanent CEO, did
N
§ 17 I feel like she's the very best candidate out there
3
% 18 to run this company? No. But I actually don't
3
§19 really have a problem with Ellen as CEO.
R
20 Q. Do -- would you want to have James Cotter, 01:40PM
21 Jr. reinstated as CEO?
22 A. IT'm indifferent. I mean, we're not
23 advocating that.
24 We want the -- we -- ultimately, we want
25 the best person to run the company, and whether 01:40PM
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JONATHAN GLASER

06/01/2016

that's Ellen, Jim, or some third party, that's to be
determined. But we're not actively lobbying to put
anybody in that seat.
Q. Okay. Do you know that, in your lawsuit,
you asked that he be reinstated; correct?
A. T believe initially we did. I don't know
if we are gtill seeking that.
MR. TAYBACK: This has previously been
marked as 213. Did you get that, 2137
(Previously marked Deposition Exhibit 213
was identified.)

BY MR. TAYBACK:

T e R R RS

Q. So I'm showing you what has been marked
previously as Exhibit 213. And it's the T2
Plaintiffs' First Amended Complaint. So it's the
one that's on file now.

And if you could go to page 37, using the
page numbers in the lower center, under the section
that says "Prayer for Relief."

A. Yeah.

Q. Under "Eguitable and Injunctive Relief," B,
it says:

"Including but not limited to, i)

an order reinstating Jamegs J. Cotter,

Jr., as the president and CEO of"

01:40PM

01:41PM

01:41PM

01:41PM

Page 155

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_PAGE_0970



B R s D S o T o o o P P T 7,

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

JONATHAN GLASER 06/01/2016

Reading -- "of RDI."
Does that refresh your recollection that

that's, in fact, what you're still asking for?

A. It is still in there.

Q. But is it your understanding that you're 01:42PM
not actually seeking that?

A. That's correct.

Q. Was that a decision that was made by you

and Mr. Tilson that that was not something you were

seeking? 01:42PM
A, Yes.
Q. Describe for me how that decision was made.
A. I don't recall exactly. It's a body of

thought that's emerged over the course of the last

few months. 01:42PM
Q. And what was that decision based on,

generally? Why did you originally think that was

something you wanted but now you think that that's

not something you want?
A. I guess I'd just say it's not a high 01:42PM

priority, that I'm personally comfortable with Ellen

as CEO or a third party. It's not -- it's just not

a high priority to put Jim, Jr. back. And I'm not

opining on whether he's a good CEO or not a good

CEO. I don't know. But in the scope of what we're 01:43PM
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g JONATHAN GLASER 06/01/2016
3
§ 1 after, that's not a priority.
§ 2 Q. Is it fair to say you don't think that
B
§ 3 whether he is or is not the CEO is going to make a
3
§ 4 difference to the shareholders of Reading?
§
§ 5 A. I don't -- at this point, I don't think it 01:43PM
§ 6 would make much difference.
O AFR——
7 Q. Let me -- I'm going to -- I'm going to ask
8 you some questions generally about the complaint,
9 the First Amended Complaint -- the original
10 complaint and the First Amended Complaint. 01:44PM
11 Did you -- I guess before filing that
12 complaint, did you read it?
13 A, The --
14 Q. The document itself?
15 A. I believe so, yeah. 01:44PM
16 Q. And now we'll focus on the First Amended
17 Compliant.
18 A. The first -- okay.
19 Q. Did you read it -- did you have -- when you
20 read it, did you have changes to it, that is to say, 01:44PM
21 I don't think this is accurate or I don't want to
22 say this?
23 A. I don't recall.
24 THE REPORTER: 241 .
25 (Deposition Exhibit 241 was marked for 01:44PM
Page 157

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_PAGE_0972



JONATHAN GLASER 06/01/2016

1 A. I can't say for sure. I don't think it
2 helped. And the general turmoil surrounding the
3 termination and the family in-fighting I think has
4 been, on balance, detrimental. But I -- again, I
5 don't know what people are doing out there. I don't 01:47PM
6 know what forceg people to hit the sell or buy
7 button.
8 Q. And do you know whether or not -- well, let
9 me back up.
L LU SR
§ 10 Is it your wview, though, that if it had an 01:47PM
3
§ 11 effect on the stock price, it's not based on him
3
§ 12 per se holding that position such that a
3
§ 13 reinstatement of him would positively affect the
§ 14 stock price, or do you think that?
3
§ 15 A. I don't have an opinion on that. I think 01:48PM
\
§ 16 when he was terminated, I'm guessing it came as a
§ 17 surprise and a negative surprise to the market. If
3
§ 18 he were reinstated, I have no idea if the market
§
§ 19 would react positively or not.
e —
20 Q. Do you think it's generally true that the 01:48PM
21 termination of a CEO adversely affects stock prices
22 of the companies?
23 A. It -- I can't -- who knows. It depends on
24 the CEO. It depends on the company. How they'wve
25 been -- how the company's been doing. It could be 01:48PM
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JONATHAN GLASER 06/01/2016

1 fiduciary duty, in your view, to use -- to his -- to
2 the company, to the shareholders, to take action
3 against an independent contractor or employee that
4 may not be in the best interest of the company
5 because of a personal dispute? 03:18PM
6 A. Yeah, I understand your question better.
7 Yes.
8 Q. Have you done anything to look into whether
9 that occurred?
10 A. No. 03:18PM
11 Q. Did you, with respect to -- give me one
12 minute.
N i S
§ 13 Do you have a view as to whether or not a
3
§ 14 CEO could properly be terminated for not getting
§ 15 along with the employees and other executives of the 03:19PM
}
§ 16 company?
N
% 17 A, Sure.
3
% 18 Q. And could -- would that be a proper basis
]
% 19 for termination?
]
§ 20 A. It would be a major factor, yeah. 03:19PM
21 Q. And if a personal dispute prevented a CEO
22 from discharging his duties as CEO, would that be a
23 proper basis for termination?
24 A. A personal dispute with somebody in the
25 company or -- 03:19PM
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retaining a banker or capital markets expert, and
then a report would be made to the board.

Q. Since you haven't reviewed it, I assume you
don't have any opinion on the company's current
businegss plan?

A. Well, T don't recall specifically looking
at that presentation. I may have because it's --
IT'm sure it's on the company's website.

And, you know, the issue for me -- I don't
really have a huge problem with the way the company
is running day to day. I do want to make sure that
the New York assets are being teed up in the proper
way, S0 to speak. I think the company is doing
that. It's taken a very long period of time.

I have concerns about where we are on the
real estate market and whether the company has, you
know, perhaps missed an opportunity to best
capitalize on those assets for this cycle. I don't
really know.

I think -- what I'm -- I'm not necesgarily
concerned about asset by asset. I'd more like to
understand what could be done, if anything, in terms
of perhaps monetizing some of the foreign assets or
even domestic assets. You know, just having an open

mind about what can be done to enhance the price of

03:44PM

03:44PM

03:44PM

03:45PM

03:45PM
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the stock, which I think is very depressed relative

R TP AP PR IR TA AT HIPTIITII TP
=

Page 243

2 to where it should be.
B L S S T S
3 MR. TAYBACK: Can we go off the record for
4 a couple minutes.
5 MR. ROBERTSON: Sure.
6 MR. TAYBACK: Give me a few minutes to look
7 through my outline.
8 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are off the record at
9 3:45 p.m.
10 (Recess taken.) 03:49PM
11 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are on the record at
12 3:59 p.m.
13 BY MR. TAYBACK:
W\tmmmm
N
§ 14 Q. Directing your attention to what's been
8
3
! 15 marked as Exhibit 232, it's the -- one set of 03 :59PM
3
§ 16 interrogatory responses by you.
]
%
§ 17 If you go to Exhibit B, which bears the
B
\
§ 18 Bates stamp number, you may remember, 101, it starts
X
Y
2
§ 19 with -- ending in 101. And it's a fairly long
3
3
% 20 document with a list of trades, I think. 03:59PM
}
\
y 21 I'm trying to figure out how to -- just how
\\
3
N
§ 22 to read that. It says, bought, sold, bought, sold.
2
}
3
§ 23 Can you tell by looking at that how many
N
N
% 24 Class A shares your fundg currently own?
§
3
§ 25 A. Like from thig, I couldn't tell you. All I 04 : 00PM
\
%
y
E
§
3
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JONATHAN GLASER 06/01/2016

§
§ 1 can tell you, it's approximately 500 and -- let's
3
§ 2 call it 550, give or take 25. I'm not -- I
¥
§ 3 haven't -- I'm not sure exactly, but it's about
3
§ 4 that.
3
% 5 Q. And how many Class B shares? 04 : 00PM
8
% 6 A. T think it's a thousand and one.
3
% 7 Q. And has each of the -- your two funds owned
]
% 8 some RDI shares during the entire pendency of the
3
§ 9 litigation?
Y
§ 10 A, Yeah. 04 :00PM
3
§ 11 Q. Okavy.
b
§ 12 A, Yeah.
]
§ 13 Q. And how about you personally? Have you
8
% 14 held Reading funds during the pendency of the
R
§ 15 litigation? 04 :01PM
N
§ 16 A. Yeah. I mean, the positions are largely --
N
% 17 yvou know, not materially different than where they
§ 18 were way back when.
§m~m‘m‘m
19 Q. How has your investment in Reading
20 performed compared to, say, your investment in other 04 :01PM
21 stocks over the span of time?
22 A. Over which span of time?
23 Q. Over the span of time that you'wve been
24 invested in Reading.
25 A. I would say okay. It hasn't been bad. 04:01PM
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1 cover.
2 Q. Okay. And then, just so we're clear,
3 looking at pages, say, 117 and 118, after each line
4 there's a number which indicates -- I believe on
5 these pages at least, indicates the number of 04 :17PM
6 optiong or shares.
7 A, Yes.
8 Q. Then there's the code name for the company,
9 RDT.
10 A, Yeah. 04 :17PM
11 Q. And what's the number --
12 A. That's prob- --
13 Q. -- and the letters that follow?
14 A, That's probably a security ID number. So
15 that's -- that, I'm guesging, i1s an ID number for 04 :17PM
16 the contract, for the specific options contract.
17 Q. And does that include all the way into the
18 letters that end --
19 A. Yeah. And then they -- where you see PCMJ
20 or JMG or Glaser, that would be the account that it 04 :17PM
21 goes into.
T ——
§ 22 Q. You said at one point that you would not
% 23 fire Ellen Cotter. Why not?
X
% 24 A. T don't have any evidence that she's not a
8
% 25 good CEO. I -- in fact, I told -- when the 04 :18PM
§ Page 258
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search --

CEO search was concluded and they

announced Ellen was becoming the permanent CEO, one,

I was not in the least bit surprised and, two, I

told Andrzej in the conversation I had with him that

I was not necessarily troubled by that either.

R R R RN AR AR AR RRRRR

Q.

Did you say to Andrzej, the CFO, why vyou

were not troubled by that?

A.

Q.

A,
anybody e

and, two,

I don't recall, no.

Why weren't you troubled by that?

I recognize,

one, the difficulty of finding

lse, particularly with the c¢ircus going on;

I think she

knows the company pretty well,

has been there a long time, probably learned the

business

from her dad.

So I'm not convinced that there's some

knight in shining armor out there to come in and be,

you know,
this comp
Q.
spoke to
A
Q.
A
Q.

name was?

a great -- you know, a much better CEO of

any. I'm okay with Ellen.

Did you -- I believe you indicated that you

someone on behalf of Pico --

Yes.

-- Pico Holdings?

Yeah.

Do you recall

-- you don't remember who the

04 :18PM

04 :18PM

04 :18PM

04 :15PM

04 :15PM
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Delaware limited partnership,
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1 It's -- by the way, one of the reasons I 09:46:26
2 chose not to intervene was, I didn't want this
3 deterioration of relationship to occur. I had hoped
4 that we could remain -- that I would be perceived
5 and we could remain independent of the fight between 09:46:44
6 the siblings over the control of the assets and the
7 control of the company.
i UTT IR
% 8 T just want what's best for the company
8
§ 9 and all its shareholders in the delivery of its
3
§ 10 business plan, which I don't have any disagreements 09:47:00
3
§ 11 with. I haven't had a disagreement with their
% 12 direction for -- with Senior, with Junior, or with
§
%13 what Ellen has been doing.
§
%14 Q And that business plan hasn't changed over
%15 the course of time? 09:47:17
]
%16 A I think it's been fairly -- I think the
3
%17 business plan has been fairly consistent.
18 There wasgs a bias over Senior's earlier
19 years of accumulating. He never met a distressed
20 seller he didn't like. And he -- it's not that he 09:47:33
21 didn't -- it's not that he didn't buy well. He
22 bought well most times. But, you know, he
23 accumulated.
24 Near the last year or two of his life,
25 unfortunately, the last few yvears, which were the 09:47:51
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1 last of his life, unfortunately, he became more of a 09:47:55

2 seller and building upon the value of the assets
3 that had been accumulated than an accumulator.
4 He had a few forays that I think went off
5 the rails and didn't go well that I, at annual 09:48:069
6 meetings, would call him out on and be critical of,
7 that this is a distraction.
RS
§ 8 And now with the current assets that they
3
§ 9 have, Junior was migrating the company towards
]
§ 10 building upon what the company had, and I feel Ellen 09:48:27
8
§ 11 and the new regime is similarly doing that.
s\*“m‘mﬁmmmw
12 Q So after the termination of Mr. Cotter
13 Junior, the business plan that you'wve identified
14 hasn't really changed; is that correct?
15 A Not that I can tell. 09:48:46
16 Q Had the operations of the business at RDI
17 changed?
18 A Yes. ©Not so much. But in one particular
19 area, the operating costs, the SG&A has gone through
20 the roof. 09:49:03
21 That part is unfortunate, but there's been
22 a substantial hiring of new parties and a --
23 creating redundancies, as well as then the exiting
24 of parties.
25 And so that has increased the SG&A of the 09:49:24

Page 41

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_ PAGE_0984



A e A

T o B e e s A S S A

10

11

12

13

14

15

&
7
7z ~ o
.
"‘
%
7
%
%
Z
%
Z
%
2
%
"‘
%
7
%
%
Z
%
Z
%
7

=
0

=
\O

20

21

22

23

24

25

company beyond its historical norms. I'm hopeful 09:49:26
that it will prove to be non-recurring and that the
SG&A operating costs will go back down to their
historical levels while the company still continues
to grow. 09:49:40

Q But the company has continued to grow as
between the time that Mr. Cotter Junior was
terminated and then Ellen Cotter took over as CEO;
is that correct?

A I think it's continued along its path. 09:49:51
Whether it's grown or not is a function of box
office success or not box office success in this
short window.

I believe Ellen -- Junior was terminated
in June, so Ellen has had it for a year. Junior has 09:50:04
had it for about nine months of what is alleged in
the complaint a tumultuous time period.
So during both periods of time, the

operating performance of the company has kind of
chugged along. I don't feel there's any differences 09:50:21
between the operational direction. I can't tell of
any difference between the operational direction
that Junior was leading the company and that Ellen

is leading the company.

So I can't tell of any operational 09:50:37
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§ 1 differences that have caused this horrible, nasty, 09:50:39
§ 2 childlike dispute.
| R ER——
3 Q You're referring to the litigation now?
4 A The sibling fight over the control of the
5 estate. 09:50:47
6 Q All right. We were talking about
7 Mr. Matyczynski just a minute ago.
8 I think you said that there were instances
9 where you would reach out to Mr. Ghose, and then
10 Mr. Matyczynski would then call you or communicate 09:50:59
11 with you; is that right?
12 A On one or two instances I'd reach out to
13 Dev, or I'd reach out to them both, and Matyczynski
14 would be responsive.
15 Q Did you ask Andrzej why he was 09:51:14
16 communicating with you instead of Mr. Ghosge?
17 A I think Andrzej mentioned to me that he
18 wag designated to deal with me.
19 Q By the company?
20 A By whoever. Yes. I'm assuming by whoever 09:51:24
21 pays his paycheck. I don't know.
22 Q Did he say that that was a function of
23 your prior involvement in the intervention suit at
24 allr
25 A No. 09:51:36
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1 would hire. 09:59:18
2 Q After you graduated from UCLA in 1987,
3 what was your first job after that?
4 A I worked in the leveraged finance
5 division, the acquisition finance group, of 09:59:34
6 Manufacturers Hanover Bank, which is now part of JP
7 Morgan. It was a special unit that originated and
8 structured the financing of the senior debt of all
9 the big buyouts in the late '80s.
10 Q How long did you work at Hanover? 09:59:50
11 A Mani Hani, as we call it, I worked at Mani
12 Hani from 1987, right before the crash, to 1989.
13 Q What was your next job?
14 A I was an officer at the investment
15 management arm or the family office for the Belzberg 10:00:10
16 family at First City Capital, it was called, in New
17 York City. Manufacturers Hanover was in New York
18 City as well.
19 Q How long did you work at First City
20 Capital? 10:00:25
21 A I was at First City from 1989 to 1991.
P ————
§ 22 Q What was your next job?
% 23 A T taught finance at the Haas School of
R
% 24 Business as an adjunct professor.
3
% 25 And I was a congsultant at the same time 10:00:49
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with a now defunct fund of funds that I had. They
were a consulting client, that I would help advise
them on whether the hedge funds they allocated
capital to actually invested consistent with the
style and strategy they told the fund of funds that
they did.

So value -- they said they were a wvalue
investor. And if they had a bunch of Amazon or
Netflix, although I don't think they existed then,
then that would have been examples of investments
not consistent with their style and strategy, which
is something that I could certainly do.

And after teaching and while doing
consulting, I basically migrated to found my firm,
Lawndale Capital Management, in 1992, and opened up
our funds in February of 1993. And I've been doing
that ever since. We're in our 24th year.

Q What's the business of Lawndale?

A Lawndale is an investment advisor that
serves ag the general partner to some investment
limited partnerships.

Q What do you mean by that?

MR. RAISST: By what?

THE WITNESS: I don't understand your

question.

10:00:55

10:01:11

10:01:25

10:01:43

10:02:08

10:02:22
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BY MR.

SEARCY :

Q

What do you mean when you say it serves as

a general partner to some investment limited

partnerships?

A So Lawndale Capital Management is an
investment advisor. It is the general partner in
some partnerships. Those partnerships are
investment limited partnerships. They make
investments.

Q And are those investment limited

partnerships, are those operated by you?

A

The general partner, Lawndale Capital

Management, which I am the founder, president and

portfolio manager of.

Q

So yes?

MR. RAISSI: No. His answer is what his

answer was.

THE WITNESS: Exactly what my lawyer said

on that. It is what my answer is.

So if you want to clarify the question,

I'll be responsive.

BY MR.

Q

A

SEARCY :

Sure. Happy to work with you on this.

Yeah.

In terms of the general partnership where

10:02:23

10:02:29

10:02:42

10:02:57

10:03:06

10:03:16
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Lawndale is serving as a general partnership -- 10:03:17
A Lawndale is not a general partnership,
okay?
Q Tt's the general partner with the
partnership? 10:03:23
A Lawndale is the general partner of a
partnership which then has limited partners. And
that partnership has a brokerage account and makes
investments.
Q And would those limited partners come from 10:03:35
outside of Lawndale?
A Yes.
Q But Lawndale itself as the general partner
would control the partnership, correct?
A As general partner and with its power of 10:03:44
attorneys or whatever elge the legal documents were
that gives it discretionary authority on what to buy
and sell.
Q Has Lawndale been your full-time
occupation since 19937 10:04:03
A Um-hum.
Q Just for the record, that was a "yes," for
the court reporter?
A I'm sorry. Yes.

Q How many employees does Lawndale have? 10:04:14
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A Lawndale Capital Management, LLC, only has 10:04:20

me as an employee.

Tt has a -- Lawndale -- it has an
affiliate, Lawndale Capital Management, Inc., and it
has two employeeg, plus me. 10:04:45

Q What are the roles of those two employees?
A They asgssist me in the analysis of

companies. They assist in the operational aspects

of the business, the regulatory compliance, the

day-to-day activities of the business. 10:05:13
Q Are they involved -- these two employees,

are they involved in making trading decisions?
A No.
Q Do you make all trading decisions for the

Lawndale entitieg? 10:05:25
A I do.

Q And Lawndale owns RDI stock; is that

A Yes.

Q What percentage of Lawndale's holdings are 10:05:39
in RDI stock?

A You know, that's kind of -- that's
proprietary data. It's our largest investment. I
mean, I'll give you that. But how much we allocate

to each individual investment amongst investments is 10:05:56

Page 54

Veritext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

APP_ PAGE_0991




B B B G B G B D B 3 e e e e e e e e R s

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

proprietary to our operations and our investment 10:06:04

partners.

Q

All right.

place in this case.

We have a protective order in

Maybe we can designate that

information as confidential.

order,

MR. RAISSI:

SO —--

MR. SEARCY:

We've not seen any protective

Well, maybe we can have a

discussion about that over the break.

MR. RAISSI:

relevance is to this,

information.

correctly,
today at this deposition is that his -- the 10:06:39

percentage of RDI stock in the portfolioc of Lawndale

MR. SEARCY:

I don't see what the 10:06:25
either. It's proprietary
It's trade secret.
Just so I understand

the position that Mr. Shapiro

is proprietary and trade secret?

consistent with the written objections we served to

MR. RAISST:

That's correct, and

the document requests whenever that was,

five months ago.

BY MR.

said?

Q

SEARCY :

And RDI is your largest investment, you

A Yes.

10:06:15

is taking

four or 10:07:00

10:07:09
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Q What is the amount of Lawndale's
investment in RDI?

A Can you clarify that? I think you just
asked that.

Q Sure. How much money does Lawndale have
invested in RDI?

A I actually don't know exactly. I don't
know -- I don't know offhand. It's my largest
investment.

Q Do you know the approximate wvalue?

A Over 13 million.

Q What percentage of Lawndale's holdings in
RDI are Class A stock?

A Almost all of it.

Q Does Lawndale hold any RDI Class B gtock?

A Yes.

Q What amount?

A A few thousand shares. Very -- very
little.

Q Do you know what the wvalue of those shares

are?

A A few thousand times $13 a share. So

13 -- $26,000, $30,000. The bulk of our ownership

interest, the wvast majority of our ownership

interest is in the non-voting Class A shares just

10:07:09

10:07:20

10:07:31

10:08:00

10:08:20

10:08:41
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1 like the rest of the public. 10:08:46
2 93 percent of all the public shares --
3 sorry -- 93 percent of all the shares of Reading are
4 non-voting shares, and only 7 percent of all the
5 shares of Reading are voting shares. 10:09:00
S
6 Q Do you have any knowledge as to whether
7 the Class B shares are more valuable than the
8 Class A shares?
9 A Knowledge? No. Cotter Senior has always
10 treated and has represented throughout all these 10:09:30
11 years that he viewed them economically identical,
12 and he treated them in the merger and other time
13 windows economically identical any time he had dual
14 class.
15 My initial investment was in Craig Corp. 10:09:44
16 preferred shares, and he treated those preferred,
17 which were basically non-voting shares of Craig
18 Corp, one of the predecesgssors -- with respect to the
19 voting shares of Craig, he always treated those
20 identically as well, economically identically. 10:09:59
21 Yes, they provided him voting control of
22 the entity, but economically, on more than one
23 occasion, he represented that he viewed them
24 economically identical and he would treat them
25 economically identical. And in multiple corporate 10:10:17
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1 longer than Junior, whether it's because of the 11:31:39
2 litigation, whether it's because I'm viewed
3 adversarial, or it's her own style, I've had less
4 engagement with Ellen in the one-year window than I
5 did with Junior, and my advice and coungsel has not 11:31:56
6 been sought.
7 If anything, with respect to Dev Ghose as
8 CFO, I'm reminded by him on multiple occasions how
9 many decades he's been a CFO of larger companies,
10 and a "we don't need your advice" kind of message. 11:32:16
11 Ellen hasn't sent that message, but Ellen
12 hasn't asked for counsel or advice in any way. She
13 didn't seem to really care about my views or
14 opinions about that. So I can't -- I can't say that
15 I come away from a conversation with her -- which 11:32:37
16 has been limited -- that I've come away feeling that
17 they are going to pursue this once the litigation is
18 over.
L
§ 19 Do I feel that -- are they pursuing that
3
§ 20 now? I don't really have a bias between Junior's 11:32:57
§ 21 regime or Ellen's regime, 1f that's what you say. I
§ 22 think that she's been advancing the company forward,
3
§ 23 similar to what I had observed Junior doing.
24 The only distinction I have is that Junior
25 was doing it without the cloud of litigation, and 11:33:15
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1 about buying shares in the sell-off, you didn't 14:49:42
2 alert the board that you were considering filing
3 your own intervention suit, correct?
4 A Correct, other than that email you saw
5 that put them on notice that we will do any and all 14:49:58
6 actions to protect shareholder interests. But no
7 specific, we have or will and are contemplating an
8 intervenors' motion.
9 Q When you -- as of July 27th, 2015, you
10 were actually working with counsel for preparation 14:50:25
11 of an intervention suit, correct?
12 A I don't think that's correct. I was
13 interviewing counsel at that time.
14 On the 27th, we were interviewing counsel
15 and had not resolved on who counsel would be and 14:50:45
16 various issues regarding the intervention. But I
17 was still contemplating being one of the intervenors
18 at that time.
m——_——
§ 19 Q And you didn't let the board know any of
3
§ 20 that, though, right? 14:51:03
3
§ 21 A I did not let the board know -- when I
3
§ 22 emailed them that they ought to buy back shares, I
3
% 23 did not let the board know that I was considering
]
% 24 filing an intervenors' motion. I wouldn't want that
3
% 25 to frankly taint their decision one way or another 14:51:15
%
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1 on the highly accretive corporate allocation of 14:51:18
2 buying back and retiring shares.

3 Part of the reason I didn't intervene and

4 I was concerned about being a named intervenor was

5 the fact that it would cloud any perception -- the 14:51:32
6 problem with the intervenorgs' gsuit was that it, in

many ways, was piling on or aligning some of the

8 allegations and remedies with that of Junior, which

9 I was not necesgsarily in pursuit of, of any and all

10 of those remedies. 14:51:58

=
=

Q Which remedies of Junior were you not in

R o o B o o B o o o o o o o S S o e
~]

12 pursuit of?
13 A I wasn't committed one way or the other
14 that Junior should be reinstated.
- O R
15 Again, Junior was the devil I knew, and he 14:52:10
16 wags doing things in a manner I had no problems with.
17 I had no idea what or how the sisters or Ellen would
18 manage the company.
19 So it was the devil I knew wversus the
20 devil I didn't know. And it was also the fact that, 14:52:26
21 you know, they're having this nasty, horrible,
22 drag-out fight over the family estate.
23 Q But as of the date where you were
24 congidering filing the intervention suit, you didn't
25 know whether you had to seek reinstatement of 14:52:38
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A No.

Q Have you had any conversations with Mark
Krum?

A Yes.

Q On how many different occasions?

A On a few occasions when I was making the

decision whether or not I wanted to file an

intervenors' suit or not. I den't think I've talked

with him really since all of that got filed. Just

then, I think. So that's on or around July, end of

July, early August.

I might have talked with him once or twice
subsequent, regarding status of the case, basically,

of one of the other cases that's not the derivative

action. But he's -- you know, I can't talk with

Junior. I asked Krum -- I asked Krum in one or two

calls what's going on in a certain suit.

R R AR R AR AR AR

Q What did you discuss with Mr. Krum about
whether or not to file an intervenorsgs' suit?

A I told him I was considering filing -- I
was considering being an intervenor. I wanted to
understand the nature of Junior's claims, why he
felt these claims were derivative and not personal
or direct.

My main issue here was that I told him

16:23:55

16:24:02

16:24:19

16:24:40

16:24:55

16:25:12
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1 that I don't think necessarily Junior is the best 16:25:14
2 adequate representative of mine or other shareholder

3 interests, and I wanted shareholders, myself or

4 shareholder representatives, to have a seat at the

5 table. Because who best to pursue and find out 16:25:28
6 what's been going on at this company above and

7 beyond just the circumstances surrounding Junior's

8 termination than independent shareholders?

And so that is why I was very motivated to

WWWJHJWJ}P}Jfgfjﬂf}P}}JEf}ﬂfJEQ}EWW;WW
\O

10 be the intervenor, to file an intervening action, to 16:25:46
11 create and have remedies employed here at the

12 company that would be protective of and benefit all

13 shareholders. And the rehiring of Cotter Junior

14 solely as a remedy didn't seem to me to be remedy

15 enough for all that had gone on in the last few 16:26:04
16 years of Cotter Senior's life and in the years

17 subsequent.
-

18 Q So with respect to the items that you'wve

19 just described, things that have occurred in the

20 last few years of Cotter Senior's life? 16:26:24
21 A Yes, that would be within the statute of

22 limitations.

23 Q That was going to be my question to you,

24 wag, with respect to those issues which are now

25 barred by the statute of limitations, why didn't you 16:26:38
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AMENDED AND RESTAED
BYLAWS'
OF
READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.

A Nevada Corporation

ARTICLE 1
STOCKHOLDERS

SECTION 1 ANNUAL MEETING

Annual meetings of the stockholders, commencing with the year 2000, shall be held each
year within 150 days of the end of the fiscal year on the third Thursday in May if not a legal
holiday, and if a legal holiday, then on the next secular day following at ten o’clock a.m., or such
other date and time as may be set by the Board of Directors” from time to time and stated in the
notice of the meeting, at which the stockholders shall elect by a plurality vote a Board of
Directors and transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.

SECTION 2 SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the stockholders, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise
prescribed by statute or by the Articles of Incorporation, may be called by the Chairman or Vice
Chairman of the Board or the President, and shall be called by the Chairman, Vice Chairman or
President at the written request of a majority of the Board of Directors or at the written request of
stockholders owning outstanding shares representing a majority of the voting power of the
Corporation. Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of such meeting.

SECTION 3 NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Written notice of stockholders meetings, stating the place, date and hour thereof, and, in
the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be
given to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat at least ten days but not more than sixty days
before the date of the meeting, unless a different period is prescribed by statute. Business
transacted any special meeting of the stockholders shall be limited to the purpose or purposes
stated in the notice.

' These Amended and Restated Bylaws are hereinafter referred to as the Bylaws.
* The “Board” and “Board of Directors” are hereinafter used in reference to the Board of Directors of Reading
International, Inc.
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SECTION 4 PLACE OF MEETINGS

All annual meetings of the stockholders shall be held in the County of Los Angeles, State
of California, at such place as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors, or at
such other place within or without the State of Nevada as the directors shall determine. Special
meetings of the stockholders may be held at such time and place within or without the State of
Nevada as shall be stated in the notice of the meeting, or in a duly executed waiver of notice
thereof. Business transacted at any special meeting of stockholders shall be limited to the
purposes stated in the notice.

SECTION 5 STOCKHOLDER LISTS

The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of the Corporation shall prepare and
make, not less than ten nor more than sixty days before every meeting of stockholders, a
complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order,
and showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of
each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for any proper
purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary business hours for a period not less than ten
days prior to the meeting, either at a place within the city where the meeting 1s to be held, which
place shall be specified in the notice of the meeting, or, if not so specified, at the place where the
meeting 1s to be held. The list shall also be produced and kept at the time and place of the
meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present.

SECTION 6 QUORUM; ADJOURNED MEETINGS

The holders of a majority of the stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat,
present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the
stockholders for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by statute or by the
Articles of Incorporation. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any
meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders entitled to vote thereat, present in person or
represented by proxy, shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without
notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present or represented.
At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may
be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed. If the
adjournment is for more than thirty days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed
for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder
of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

SECTION 7 VOTING

Except as otherwise provided by statute or the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws,
and except for the election of directors, at any meeting duly called and held at which a quorum is
present, a majority of the votes cast at such meeting upon a given matter by the holders of
outstanding shares of stock of all classes of stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon who
are present in person or by proxy shall decide such matter. At any meeting duly called and held
for the election of directors at which a quorum is present, directors shall be elected by a plurality
of the votes cast by the holders (acting as such) of shares of stock of the Corporation entitled to
elect such directors.

APP_PAGE_1005



SECTION § PROXIES

At any meeting of the stockholders any stockholder may be represented and vote by a
proxy or proxies appointed by an instrument in writing. In the event that any such instrument in
writing shall designate two or more persons to act as proxies, a majority of such persons present
at the meeting, or, if only one shall be present, then that one shall have and may exercise all of
the powers conferred by such written instrument upon all of the persons so designated unless the
instrument shall otherwise provide. No proxy, proxy revocation or power of attorney to vote
shall be used at a meeting of the stockholders unless it shall have been filed with the secretary of
the meeting; provided, however, nothing contained herein shall prevent any stockholder from
attending any meeting and voting in person. All questions regarding the qualification of voters,
the validity of proxies and the acceptance or rejection of votes shall be decided by the inspectors
of election who shall be appointed by the Board of Directors, or if not so appointed, then by the
presiding officer of the meeting,.

SECTION 9 ACTION WITHOUT MEETING

Any action which may be taken by the vote of the stockholders at a meeting may be taken
without a meeting if authorized by the written consent of stockholders holding at least a majority
of the voting power, unless the provisions of the statutes governing the Corporation or of the
Articles of Incorporation require a different proportion of voting power to authorize such action
in which case such proportion of written consents shall be required. Prompt notice of the taking
of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous written consent shall be given
to those stockholders who have not consented in writing.

SECTION 10  CERTAIN LIMITATIONS

The Board of Directors shall not, without the prior approval of the stockholders, adopt
any procedures, rules or requirements which restrict a stockholders right to (i) vote, whether in
person, by proxy or by written consent; (ii) elect, nominate or remove directors; (iii) call a
special meeting; or (1v) to bring new business before the stockholders, except as may be required
by applicable law.

ARTICLE 11
DIRECTORS

SECTION 1 MANAGEMENT OF CORPORATION

The business of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors, which may
exercise all such powers of the Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by
statute or by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws directed or required to be exercised
or done by the stockholders.

SECTION 2 NUMBER, TENURE, AND QUALIFICATIONS

The number of directors, which shall constitute the whole board, shall be nine (9).
Thereafter, the number of directors may from time to time be increased or decreased to not less
than one nor more than ten by action of the Board of Directors. The directors shall be elected by
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the holders of shares entitled to vote thereon at the annual meeting of the stockholders and,
except as provided in Section 4 of this Article, each director elected shall hold office until his
successor is elected and qualified. Directors need not be stockholders.

SECTION 3 CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

The directors may elect one of their members to be Chairman of the Board of Directors
and one of their members to be Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Chairman and
Vice Chairman shall be subject to the control of and may be removed by the Board of Directors.
The Chairman and Vice Chairman shall perform such duties as may from time to time be
assigned to them by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4 VACANCIES; REMOVAL

Vacancies in the Board of Directors, including those caused by an increase in the number
of directors, may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum, or
by a sole remaining director, and each director so elected shall hold office until his successor is
elected at an annual or a special meeting of the stockholders. The holders of no less than two-
thirds of the outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote may at any time peremptorily terminate
the term of office of all or any of the directors by vote at a meeting called for such purpose or by
written consent filed with the Secretary or, in his absence, with any other officer. Such removal
shall be effective immediately, even if successors are not elected simultaneously.

A vacancy or vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be deemed to exist in case of the
death, resignation or removal of any directors, or if the authorized number of directors be
increased, or if the stockholders fail at any annual or special meeting of stockholders at which
any director or directors are elected to elect the full authorized number of directors to be voted
for at that meeting.

If the Board of Directors accepts the resignation of a director tendered to take effect at a
future time, the Board or the stockholders shall have power to elect a successor to take office
when the resignation is to become effective.

No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any
director prior to the expiration of his term of office.

SECTION 5 ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS

Annual and regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at any place within
or without the State of Nevada that has been designated from time to time by resolution of the
Board of Directors or by written consent of all members of the Board of Directors. In the
absence of such designation, annual and regular meetings shall be held at the registered office of
the Corporation. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without call or notice
at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be fixed and determined by the Board of
Directors.
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SECTION 6 FIRST MEETING

The first meeting of each newly elected Board of Directors shall be held at such time and
place as shall be fixed by the vote of the stockholders at the annual meeting and no notice of
such meeting shall be necessary to the directors in order legally to constitute the meeting,
provided a quorum is present. In the event of the failure of the stockholders to fix the time and
place of such first meeting, or in the event such meeting is not so held, the meeting may be held
at such time and place as shall be specified in a notice given as hereinafter provided for special
meetings of the Board of Directors, or as shall be specified in a written waiver signed by all of
the directors.

SECTION 7 SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairman or Vice
Chairman of the Board or the President upon notice to each director, either personally or by mail
or by telegram. Upon the written request of a majority of the directors, the Chairman or Vice
Chairman of the Board or the President shall call a special meeting of the Board to be held
within two days of the receipt of such request and shall provide notice thereof to each director,
either personally or by mail or by telegram.

SECTION & BUSINESS OF MEETINGS

The transactions of any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called and noticed or
wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and
notice, if a quorum be present, and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not
present signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to holding such meeting, or an approval of
the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the corporate
records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

SECTION 9 QUORUM; ADJOURNED MEETINGS

A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business, except to adjourn as hereinafter provided. Every act or decision done or
made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present
shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors, unless a greater number is required by law
or by the Articles of Incorporation. Any action of a majority, although not at a regularly called
meeting, and the record thereof, if assented to in writing by all of the other members of the
Board shall be as valid and effective in all respects as if passed by the Board of Directors in a
regular meeting.

A quorum of the directors may adjourn any directors meeting to meet again at a stated
day and hour; provided, however, that in the absence of a quorum, a majority of the directors
present at any directors’ meeting, either regular or special, may adjourn from time to time,
without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum is present.

Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to the
absent directors if the time and place are fixed at the meeting adjourned.
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SECTION 10  COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the whole Board,
designate one or more committees of the Board of Directors, each committee to consist of at
least one or more directors of the Corporation which, to the extent provided in the resolution,
shall have and may exercise the power of the Board of Directors in the management of the
business and affairs of the Corporation and may have power to authorize the seal of the
Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it; but no such committee shall have
the power to amend the Articles of Incorporation, to adopt an agreement or plan of merger or
consolidation, to recommend to the stockholders a sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially
all of the Corporation’s assets, to recommend to the stockholders dissolution or revocation of
dissolution, or to amend these Bylaws, and, unless the resolution or the Articles of Incorporation
expressly so provide, no such committee shall have the power or authority to declare a dividend
or to authorize the issuance of stock. Such committee or committees shall have such name or
names as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board may
designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any
absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. The members of any such
committee present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting may, whether or not they
constitute a quorum, unanimously appoint another member of the Board of Directors to act at the
meeting in the place of any absent or disqualified member. At meetings of such committees, a
majority of the members or alternate members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business, and the act of a majority of the members or alternate members at any meeting at which
there is a quorum shall be the act of the committee.

The committees, if required by the Board, shall keep regular minutes of their proceedings
and report the same to the Board of Directors.

SECTION 11  ACTION WITHOUT MEETING; TELEPHONE MEETINGS

Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or
of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if a written consent thereto is signed
by all members of the Board of Directors or of such committee, as the case may be, and such
written consent 1s filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board or committee.

Nothing contained in these Bylaws shall be deemed to restrict the powers of members of
the Board of Directors, or any committee thereof, to participate in a meeting of the Board or
committee by means of telephone conference or similar communications equipment whereby all
persons participating in the meeting can hear each other.

SECTION 12 SPECIAL COMPENSATION

The directors may be paid their expenses of attendance at each meeting of the Board of
Directors and may be paid a fixed sum for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors
or a stated salary as director as fixed by the Board of Directors. No such payment shall preclude
any director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation
therefor. Members of committees may be allowed like reimbursement and compensation for
attending committee meetings.
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ARTICLE III
NOTICES

SECTION 1 NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Whenever, under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or applicable law or
these Bylaws, notice is required to be given to any director or stockholder, it shall not be
construed to mean personal notice, but such notice may be given in writing, by mail, addressed
to such director or stockholders, at his address as it appears on the records of the Corporation,
postage prepaid, and such notice shall be deemed to be given at the time when the same shall be
deposited in the United States mail. Notice to directors may also be given by telegram.

Notices of meetings of stockholders shall be in writing and signed by the President or a
Vice-President or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary or by such other person or persons as
the directors shall designate. Such notice shall state the purpose or purposes for which the
meeting is called and the time and the place, which may be within or without this State, where it
is to be held. Personal delivery of any notice to any officer of a corporation or association, or to
any member of a partnership, shall constitute delivery of such notice to such corporation,
association or partnership. In the event of the transfer of stock after delivery of such notice of
and prior to the holding of the meeting it shall not be necessary to deliver or mail notice of the
meeting to the transferee.

SECTION 2 EFFECT OF IRREGULARLY CALLED MEETINGS

Whenever all parties entitled to vote at any meeting, whether of directors or stockholders,
consent, either by a writing on the records of the meeting or filed with the secretary, or by
presence at such meeting and oral consent entered on the minutes, or by taking part in the
deliberations at such meeting without objection, the doings of such meeting shall be as valid as if
had at a meeting regularly called and noticed, and at such meeting any business may be
transacted which is not excepted from the written consent or to the consideration of which no
objection for want of notice is made at the time, and if any meeting be irregular for want of
notice or of such consent, provided a quorum was present at such meeting, the proceedings of
said meeting may be ratified and approved and rendered likewise valid and the irregularity or
defect therein waived by a writing signed by all parties having the right to vote at such meeting;
and such consent or approval of stockholders may be by proxy or attorney, but all such proxies
and powers of attorney must be in writing.

SECTION 3 WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice whatever is required to be given under the provisions of the
statutes, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the
person or persons entitled to said notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be
deemed equivalent thereto.

APP_ PAGE_1010



ARTICLE 1V
OFFICERS

SECTION 1 ELECTION

The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually at the first meeting by the Board
of Directors held after each annual meeting of the stockholders and shall be a President, one or
more Vice Presidents, a Treasurer and a Secretary, and such other officers with such titles and
duties as the Board of Directors may determine, none of whom need be directors. The President
shall be the Chief Executive Officer, unless the Board designates the Chairman of the Board as
Chief Executive Officer. Any person may hold one or more offices and each officer shall hold
office until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified or until his death or until he
shall resign or is removed in the manner as hereinafter provided for such term as may be
prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

SECTION 2 CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors at its first annual meeting after each annual meeting of the
stockholders may choose a Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board from among the directors
of the Corporation. The Chairman of the Board, and in his absence the Vice Chairman, shall
preside at meetings of the stockholders and the Board of Directors and shall see that all orders
and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried into effect.

SECTION 3 PRESIDENT

The President shall be the chief operating officer of the Corporation, shall also be a
director and shall have active management of the business of the Corporation. The President
shall execute on behalf of the Corporation all instruments requiring such execution except to the
extent the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly designated by the Board of Directors
to some other officer or agent of the Corporation.

SECTION 4 VICE-PRESIDENT

The Vice-President shall act under the direction of the President and in the absence or
disability of the President shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the President. The
Vice-President shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the President or
the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe. The Board of Directors may designate
one or more Executive Vice-Presidents or may otherwise specify the order of seniority of the
Vice-Presidents. The duties and powers of the President shall descend to the Vice-Presidents in
such specified order of seniority.

SECTION 5 SECRETARY

The Secretary shall act under the direction of the President. Subject to the direction of
the President, the Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and all meetings
of the stockholders and record the proceedings. The Secretary shall perform like duties for the
standing committees when required. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all
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meetings of the stockholders and special meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall perform
such other duties as may be prescribed by the President or the Board of Directors.

SECTION 6 ASSISTANT SECRETARIES

The Assistant Secretaries shall act under the direction of the President. In order of their
seniority, unless otherwise determined by the President or the Board of Directors, they shall, in
the absence or disability of the Secretary, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the
Secretary. They shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the President or
the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

SECTION 7 TREASURER

The Treasurer shall act under the direction of the President. Subject to the direction of
the President, the Treasurer shall have custody of the corporate funds and securities and shall
keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the
Corporation and shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit
of the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The
Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the President or the
Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the
President and the Board of Directors, at its regular meetings, or when the Board of Directors so
requires, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the
Corporation.

If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give the Corporation a bond in
such sum and with such surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Board of Directors for
the faithful performance of the duties of such person’s office and for the restoration to the
Corporation, in case of such person’s death, resignation, retirement or removal from office, of all
books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in such person’s possession
or under such person’s control belonging to the Corporation.

SECTION 8 ASSISTANT TREASURERS

The Assistant Treasurers in the order of their seniority, unless otherwise determined by
the President or the Board of Directors, shall, in the absence or disability of the Treasurer,
perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Treasurer. They shall perform such other
duties and have such other powers as the President or the Board of Directors may from time to
time prescribe.

SECTION 9 COMPENSATION

The Board of Directors shall fix the salaries and compensation of all officers of the
Corporation.

SECTION 10 REMOVAL; RESIGNATION

The officers of the Corporation shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.
Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors, or any member of a committee, may
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be removed at any time, with or without cause, by the Board of Directors by a vote of not less
than a majority of the entire Board at any meeting thereof or by written consent. Any vacancy
occurring in any office of the Corporation by death, resignation, removal or otherwise shall be
filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Any director or officer of the Corporation, or any member of any committee, may resign
at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board, the
President, or the Secretary of the Corporation. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time
specified therein or, if the time is not specified, then upon receipt thereof. The acceptance of
such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

ARTICLE V
CAPITAL STOCK

SECTION 1 CERTFICATED AND UNCERTIFICATED SHARES OF STOCK

Shares of stock in the Corporation shall be represented by certificates, or shall be
uncertificated, as determined by the Board of Directors in its discretion. As to any shares
represented by certificates, every stockholder shall be entitled to have a certificate signed by the
Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President or a Vice-President and the
Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer, or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the
Corporation, certifying the number of shares owned by such person in the Corporation. If the
Corporation shall be authorized to issue more than one class of stock or more than one series of
any class, the designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special
rights of the various classes of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions of such rights, shall be set forth in full or summarized on the face or back of any
certificate which the Corporation shall issue to represent such stock; provided, however, that
except as otherwise provided in NRS 78.242, in lieu of the foregoing requirements, there may be
set forth on the face or back of any certificate which the Corporation shall issue to represent such
class or series of stock, a statement that the Corporation will furnish without charge to each
stockholder who so requests, the designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or
other special rights of the various classes or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions of such preferences and/or rights.

If a certificate representing stock is signed (1) by a transfer agent other than the
Corporation or its employees or (2) by a registrar other than the Corporation or its employees,
the signatures of the officers of the Corporation may be facsimiles. In case any officer who has
signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall cease to be such
officer before such certificate is issued, such certificate may be issued with the same effect as
though the person had not ceased to be such officer. The seal of the Corporation, or a facsimile
thereof, may, but need not be, affixed to any certificates representing stock.

SECTION 2 SURRENDERED; LOST OR DESTROYED CERTIFICATES

The Board of Directors or any transfer agent of the Corporation may direct a new
certificate or certificates to be issued, or, if such stock is no longer certificated, a registration of
such stock, in place of any certificate or certificates theretofore issued by the Corporation alleged
to have been lost or destroyed upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming
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the certificate of stock to be lost or destroyed. When authorizing such issue of a new certificate
or certificates, or new registration of uncertificated stock, the Board of Directors (or any transfer
agent of the Corporation authorized to do so by a resolution of the Board of Directors) may, in
its discretion and as a condition precedent to the issuance or registration thereof, require the
owner, of such lost or destroyed certificate or certificates, or the owner’s legal representative, to
advertise the same in such manner as it shall require and/or give the Corporation a bond in such
sum as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against the Corporation
with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost or destroyed.

SECTION 3 REGULATIONS

The Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to make all such rules and
regulations and procedures as it may deem expedient concerning the issue, transfer and
cancellation of stock of the Corporation and replacement of any stock certificates representing
stock and registration and re-registration of any uncertificated stock.

SECTION 4 RECORD DATE

The Board of Directors may fix in advance a date not more than sixty days nor less than
ten days preceding the date of any meeting of stockholders, or the date for the payment of any
distribution, or the date for the allotment of rights, or the date when any change or conversion or
exchange of capital stock shall go into effect, or a date in connection with obtaining the consent
of stockholders for any purpose, as a record date for the determination of the stockholders
entitled to notice of and to vote at any such meeting, and any adjournment thereof, or entitled to
receive payment of any such distribution, or to give such consent, and in such case, such
stockholders, and only such stockholders as shall be stockholders of record on the date so fixed,
shall be entitled to notice of and to vote at such meeting, or any adjournment thereof, or to
receive payment of such dividend, or to receive such allotment of rights, or to exercise such
rights, or to give such consent, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any stock on
the books of the Corporation after any such record date fixed as aforesaid.

SECTION 5 REGISTERED OWNER

The Corporation shall be entitled to recognize the person registered on its books as the
owner of the shares to be the exclusive owner for all purposes, including voting and distribution,
and the Corporation shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in
such share or shares on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or other
notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Nevada.

ARTICLE VI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1 REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of the Corporation shall be in the County of Clark, State of Nevada.
The principal office of the Corporation shall be located in the County of Los Angeles, State of
California.
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The Corporation may also have offices at such other places both within and without the
State of Nevada as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the
Corporation may require.

SECTION 2 CHECKS; NOTES

All checks or demands for money and notes of the Corporation shall be signed by such
officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of Directors may from time to
time designate.

SECTION 3 FISCAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.
SECTION 4 STOCK OF OTHER CORPORATIONS OR OTHER INTERESTS

Unless otherwise ordered by the Board of Directors, the President, the Secretary, and
such other attorneys or agents of the Corporation as may be from time to time authorized by the
Board of Directors or the President, shall have full power and authority on behalf of the
Corporation to attend and to act an vote in person or by proxy at any meeting of the holders of
securities of any corporation or other entity in which the Corporation may own or hold shares or
other securities, and at such meetings shall possess and may exercise all the rights and powers
incident to the ownership of such shares or other securities which the Corporation, as the owner
or holder thereof, might have possessed and exercised if present. The President, the Secretary or
other such attorneys or agents may also execute and deliver on behalf of the Corporation, powers
of attorney, proxies, consents, waivers and other instruments relating to the shares or securities
owned or held by the Corporation.

SECTION 5 CORPORATE SEAL

The corporation will have a corporate seal, as may from time to time be determined by
resolution of the Board of Directors. If a corporate seal is adopted, it shall have inscribed
thereon the name of the corporation and the words “Corporate Seal” and “Nevada.” The seal
may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or in any manner
reproduced.

SECTION 6 ANNUAL STATEMENT

The Board of Directors shall present at each annual meeting, and at any special meeting
of the stockholders when called for by a vote of the stockholders, a full and clear statement of
the business and condition of the Corporation.

SECTION 7 DIVIDENDS

Dividends upon the capital stock of the Corporation, subject to the provision of the
Articles of Incorporation, if any, may be declared by the Board of Directors at any regular or
special meeting pursuant to law. Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the
capital stock of the Corporation, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation.
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Before payment of any dividend, there may be set aside out of any funds of the
Corporation available for dividends such sum or sums as the directors from time to time, in their
absolute and sole discretion, think proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or for
equalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any property or the Corporation, or for such
other purpose or purposes as the directors believe to be in the interest of the Corporation, and the
directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.

SECTION 8 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In the event of any proposed transaction which would result in the merger of the
Corporation with or into any other company or entity, or the sale, dividend, spin-off or transfer
of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, whether in one or more related
transactions (a “Covered Transaction”), such Covered Transaction shall require the approval of a
two-thirds majority of the Board of Directors after a review and written report of the terms and
fairness of such transaction have been conducted and prepared by a special committee of the
Board appointed to conduct such review. Such special committee shall consist of not less than
two directors and shall be composed entirely of directors who are neither employees, directors,
officers, agents or appointees or representatives of any company or entity affiliated with any
party to the Covered Transaction, other than the Corporation. Such special committee is
authorized to retain such professional advisors, including investment bankers, attorneys, and
accountants as it may determine, in its sole discretion, to be appropriate under the circumstances.

ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 1 INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS

Every person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved in
any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason
of the fact that such person or a person of whom that person is the legal representative is or was a
director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the
Corporation or for its benefit as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, or
as its representative in a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall be indemnified
and held harmless to the fullest extent legally permissible under the NRS from time to time
against all expenses, liability and loss (including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and amounts
paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection
therewith. The expenses of officers, directors, employee or agents incurred in defending a civil
or criminal action, suit or proceeding must be paid by the Corporation as they are incurred and in
advance of the final disposition of the action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking
by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to repay the amount if it is ultimately
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that such person is not entitled to be indemnified
by the Corporation. Such right of indemnification shall be a contract right, which may be
enforced in any manner desired by such person. Such right of indemnification shall not be
exclusive of any other right which such directors, officers, employees or agents may have or
hereafter acquire and, without limiting the generality of such statement, they shall be entitled to
their respective rights of indemnification under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders,
provision of law or otherwise, as well as their rights under this Article VII.
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SECTION 2 INSURANCE

The Board of Directors may cause the Corporation to purchase and maintain insurance on
behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is
or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of
another corporation, or as its representative in a partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise against any liability asserted against such person and incurred in any such capacity or
arising out of such status, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify
such person.

SECTION 3 FURTHER BYLAWS

The Board of Directors may from time to time adopt further Bylaws with respect to
indemnification and may amend these and such Bylaws to provide at all times the fullest
indemnification permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada.

ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENTS

SECTION 1 AMENDMENTS BY STOCKHOLDERS

The Bylaws may be amended by the stockholders at any annual or special meeting of the
stockholders by a majority vote, provided notice of intention to amend or repeal shall have been
contained in the notice of such meeting.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENTS BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting by a majority vote may amend
these Bylaws, including Bylaws adopted by the stockholders, but the stockholders may from
time to time specify particular provisions of the Bylaws, which shall not be amended by the
Board of Directors.
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CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly elected and qualified Secretary of
Reading International, Inc. (formerly Citadel Holding Corporation), a Nevada corporation (the
“Company”), and that the foregoing Bylaws, consisting of 17 pages (including cover page and
table of contents), constitute the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company as duly adopted
by the Board of Directors on November 19, 1999 and amended by the Board of Directors on
March 21, 2002, September 26, 2002, October 15, 2004, December 27, 2007 and December 28,

2011

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name this 28th of December,
2011.

Andrzej Matyczynski, Secretary
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, dated as of June 3, 2013 by and between
Reading International, inc a Nevada corporation, (the “Company”), and James J.
Cotter, Jr. {the “Executive™).

1. Term of Employment

Subject to the provisions of Section 10 below, the Company shall employ the:
Executive, and the Executive shall serve the Company in the capacity of President for o
term commencing as of June 3, 2013 and ending that date which is twelve (12) months
after either party provides the other party with written notice. of termination (the “Term of

Employment™.

2. Duttes

Duting the Term of Employment, the Executive will serve as the Company’s
President and will report directly to the Chief Executive Officer.  The Executive shall
devote substantially all of his business time to the Company and shall perform such
duties, consistent with his status as President of the Company, as he may be assigned
from-time to time by the Chief Executive Officer.

3. Compensation

During the Term of Employment, the Company shall pay io the Executive as
tompensation for the: performance of his duties and cbligations hereunder a salary at
the rate of $335,000 per annum during each year of the term of this Agreement. Such
salary shall be paid in accordance with the Company's standard payment practices:

4. Expenses and Other Benefits

All travel, entertainment and other reasonable business expenses incident 1o the
rendering of services by the Executive hereunder will be promptly paid or reimbursed by
the Company subject to submission by the Executive in accordance with the Company's
policies in effect from time to time. The Executive shall be entitled to a vehicle
alfowance of $15,000, per annum,

The Executive shall be entitled during the Term of Employment to participate in
employee benefit and welfare plans and programs of the Company including, without
any limitation, any key man or executive long term disability insurance and employee
stock option plans to the extent that any other senior executives or officers of the
Company or its subsidiaries are eligible to participate and subject to the provisions,
rules, regulations, and laws. applicable thereto. The Executive shall immediately be
granted 100,000 employee stock options, which options shall vest annually over & five

{5) year persod _
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5. Death or Disability

~ This Agreement shall be terminated by the death of the Executive and also may
be terminated by the Board of Directors of the Company # the Executive shall be
rendered incapable by iiness or any physical or mental disability (individually, a
“disability”) from substantially complying with the terms, conditions and provisions to be
observed and performed on his part for a continuous period in excess of three (3)
months or ninety (90} days in the aggregate during any twelve (12) months during the.
Term of Employment.

6.  Disclosure of information: Inventions and Discoveries

The Executive shall promptly disclose to the Company all processes, trademarks,
inventions, improvements, discoveries and other information (collectively,
“developments”) directly related to the businiess of the Company conceived, developed
or acquired by him alone or with others during thé Term of Eniployment by the
Company, whether-or not during reguiar working hours or through the. use of material or
faciliies of the Company. All such developments shall be the sofe and exciusive
property of the Company, and upen request the Executive shall detliver to the Company
all drawings, skeiches, models and other data and records relating to such
development. In'the event any such development shall be deemed by the Company to
be patentable, the Executive shall, at the expense of the Company, assist the Company
in obtaining & patent or patents thereon and execute all documents and do all other
things necessary or proper to obtain letters patent and invest the Company with full title
thereto..

7. Non-Competition

The Company and the Executive agree that the services rendered by the
Executive hereunder are unigue and irreplaceable. During his employment by the
Company, the Executive shall not provide any type of services to any business that in
the reasonable judgment of the Company is, or as a result of the Executive's
engagement or participation would become, directly competitive with any aspect of the
business of the: Company.

8. Non-Disclosure.

‘The Executive will not at any time after the date of this Employment Agreement
divulge, furnish or make accessible to anyone (otherwise than in the regular course of
business of the Company) any knowledge or information with respect 1o confidential
matters of the Company, except to the extent such disclosure is (a) in' the performance
of his duties under this Agreement, (b) required by applicable law, (c) authorized in
writing by the Company, or {d) when required to do so by legal process, that requires
him to divuige, disclose or make accessible such information.
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g, Remedies

The Company may pursue any appropriate legal, equitable or other remedy,
including injunctive relief, in respect of any fallure by the Executive to comply with the
provisions of Sections 8, 7 or 8 hereof, it being acknawledged by the Execulive that the
remedy at law for-any such failure would be inadeguate.

10, Termination

This Agreement and the Executive’s employment with the Company may be
terminated by the: Board of Directors of the Cmmpany (i) in the event of the Executive’s
fraud, embezziement or any other illegal act cornmitied intentionally by Executive in
connection with Executive’s-duties as an executive of the Company which causes or
may reastnably be expected to cause substantial economic injury to the Company or
(i) upon thirty (30) day$’ notice to the Executive if the Executive shall be in material
breach of any material provision of this Employment Agreement other than as provided
in clause (i) above and shall have failed to cure such breach during such thirty (30) day
period {the events in {f) and (i) shal constitute “Cause”). Any such notice to the
Executive shall specify with particularity the reason for termination or proposed
termination. In the event of termination under this Section 10 or under Section 5
(except as provided therein), the Company's unaccrued obligations under this
Agreement shall cease and the Executive shall forfeit all right to reéceive any unaccrued
compensation or benefits hereunder but shall have the right to reimbursement of
expenses already incurred. if the Company terminates Executive without Cause, the
Executive shall be entitled to compensation and benefits which he was receliving for a
period of twelve months from such notice of termination. Notwithstanding any
termination of the Agreement pursuant to this Section 10 or by reason of disability under
Section 5, the Executive, in consideration of his employment hereunder to the date of
such termination, shall remain bound by the provisions of Sections 6, 7 and 8 (uniess

this' Agreement is terminated on account of the breach hereof by the Company) of this
Agreement,

In the event of any termination, the Executive shall not be required to seek
other employment to mitigate damages, and any income earned by the
Executive from other employment or self-employment shall not. be offset against any
obligations of the Company to the Executive under this Agreement. The Company's
obligations hereunder and the Executive's rights to payment shall not be subject to any
right of set-off, counterclaim or other deduction by the Company not in the nature of
customary withhelding, other than in any judicial proceeding or arbitration.

11.  Resignation

Section 5 or 10 Df thas Agreemeﬂt {except by death} the Executwe agrees that he will
deliver his written resignation to the Board of Directors, such resignation to become
effective immediately.
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12, Data

Uporn expiration of the Term of Employment or termination pursuant to Section 5
ar 10 hereof, the Executive or his personal representative shall promptly deliver {0 the.
Comipany all books, memoranda, plans, records and wrilten data of every kind relating
to the business and affairs of the Company which are then in his possession on account
of his empioy‘meﬁt‘ heretunder, but exciuding all such materiais in the Executive's
possession which are personal and not property of the Company or which he holds on
account of his past or current status as a director or shareholder of the Company.

13.  Arbitration

Any dispute or controversy arising under this Agreement or relating to its
interpretation or the breach hereof, including the arbitrability of any such dispute or
controversy, shall be determined and settled by arbitration in Los Angeles, Cafifornia
pursuant to the Rules then obtaining of the American Arbitration ASSOC!BUDE’I Any
award rendered herein shall be final and binding on esch and all of the parties, and
judgment may be entered thereon in any court of competent jurisdiction.

14.  Waiver of Breach

Any waiver of any: breach of this Employment Agreement shall not be construed
to be a continuing waiver or consent to any subsequent breach on the part sither of the
Executive or of the Company.

15,  Assignment

Neither party hereto may assign his or its rfights of delegate his or its duties under
this Employment Agreement without the prior written consent of the ofher party;
provided, however, that this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon
the successors and assignees of the Company, upon {(a) a sale of all or substantially all
of the Company's assets, or upon merger or consolidation of the Company with or into
any other corporation, and (b) upon delivery on the effective day of such sale, merger or

onsol:datzon to the ercuiave af a b:ndmg mstrument of assumpticm by such
Agreement' prowcedr,_ however that no such ass;gnment [ol2 transfer will fe,heve the
Company from its payment obligations hereunder in the event the transferee or
assignee fails to timely discharge them. No rights or obligations of the Executive under
this Agreement may be assigned or transferred other than hig rights to compensation
and benefits, which may be transferred by will or operation of law or as othemwise
specifically provided or permitted hereunder or under the terms of any applicable
employee benefit pian.

16. Notices
Any notice required or desired {o be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall

be deemed sufficiently given when delivered or 3 days after mailing in United States

-
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certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, to the party for whom intended at the
following address:

The Company:

Reading International, Inc.
6100 Center Drive, Suite 900
l.os Angeles, CA 90045

The Executive:

James J. Cotter, Jr.

Reading International, Inc.
6100 Center Drive, Suite 900
Los Angeles, CA 90045

to the ather
17.  General

The terms and provisions.of this Agreerment shall constitute the entire agreement
by the Company and the Executive with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall
supersede any and all prior agreements or understandings between the Executive and
the Company, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be amended or modified
only by a written instrument executed by the Executive and the Company, and any such
amendment or modification or any termination of this Agreement shail become effective
only after writtert approval thereof has been received by the Executive. This Agreement.
shall be governed by and construgd in accordance with California law. in the event that
any terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable,
such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or -enforceability of the
remaining terms and provisions hereof. In the event of any judicial, arbitral or other
proceeding between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, the
prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to all other relief, to reasonable attorneys’
fees and expenses and court costs.

18.  Indemnification

The Company shall indemnify the Executive to the fullest extent permitted by law
in effect as of the date hereof, or as hereafter amended, against all costs, expenses,
liabilities and iosses (mciudmg, without limitation, attomeys fees, judgments fines,
penalties, and amounts paid in sett!e'ment) reasonably incurred by the Executive in
connection with a Proceeding. For the purposes of this section, a "Proceeding” shall
mean any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, crimmai administrative or
investigative, in which the Executive is made, or is threatened to be made, a party o, or
a witness in, such action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was an

"5
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officer, director or employee of the Company or is or was serving as an officer, director,
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%N WiTNESS WHEREOF the parties have sxeculed this Agresment as of the

AGREED TO- AND ACCEPTED:

‘0 ';‘ \\

. ,,r,m, ,, S ———

e N

————

Jémes J. Cotter, “3”

D1778-0001 2489631

READ%NG INTERNATIONAL, INC.

KNS f
R’\ :{Us s ”’}“/{:/.i
EREEAN 5 WVt ) e
By: . el

Jam{?{a//(latter Sr.

RDI0006256

APP_ PAGE_1026





